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Group directors”report

Business review and principal activities

Marks and Spencer plc {the ‘Company’) 1s the main trading company of the Marks & Spencer group of companies The Company
and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) are one of the UK’s leading retailers of clothing, food and home products We employ over 81,000
people and have around 1,100 stores including Simply Food franchised stores We also trade in wholly-owned stores in the
Republic of Ireland, France, Hong Kong and China, through partly-owned stores in a number of European countries and in
franchises within Asia, Europe and the Middle East

Further information that fulfils the Business review requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and includes analysis using financial |
key performance indicators can be found in the following sections of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report

Chairman's statement on pages 2 -3

Chief Executives review on pages 8 - 14

Financial review on pages 34 - 37

Strategic review on pages 15 - 33

Environmental, Social and Community matters on pages 30 — 31 and Employees on pages 32 - 33

Marks and Spencer plc 1s incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales The Company's registered office 1s Waterside House,
35 North Wharf Road, London W2 iNW

2012 2011
£m £m
Summary of Group results
Revenue . 99343 97403
Operating profit before non-underlying eperating profit tems 8100 8249
Underlying net finance costs (104 1) (11086)
Underiying profit before tax 7059 7143
Profit on property disposals - 29
IAS 19 Ireland one-off pension credit - 107
IAS 36 Impairment of assets i {44 9} (6 3)
IAS 39 Farr value movement of financial instrument 156 543
IAS 39 Farr value movement of embedded dervative ) ) (02) 203
Strategic programme costs (18 4) (15 6)
Profit before tax 658 0 7806

Group revenue increased by 2 0% to £9,934 3m Group operating profit (before adjustments to undertying operating profit)
decreased by 1 §% to £810 Om

Underlying net finance costs, were £104 1m compared with £110 6m last year The average interest rate of borrowings during the
penod was 6 5% (last year 6 4%) Profit before tax was £658 0 compared with £780 6m last year

Group profit and dividends

The profit for the financial year, after taxation, amounts to £489 6m (last year £698 6m) The directors have declared dividends as
follows

2012 2011
£m £m

Ordinary shares ) i
Paid intenm dividend 3 5p (last year 3 5p) 998 99 8
Proposed final dividend 6 1p {last year 6 1p) 1739 1739
Total ordinary dividend 9 6p per share (last year 9 6p} 2737 2737

Principal nsks and uncertainties

The key business nsks and uncertainties affecting the Company are considered to relate to competition from other retailers, the
economic outlook, employee retention, new stores and distribution centres and the modernisation of the existing portfolio The
directors manage these risks at a Marks and Spencer Group plc level and they are discussed on pages 45 to 48 of that Group’s
annual report which does not form part of this report, but 1s still considered up to date in this respect Copies of the Marks and
Spencer Group plc consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary at Waterside House, 35 North
Wharf Road, London W2 1NW

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows

Marc Bolland Amanda Mellor
Alan Stewart Steven Sharp




Group director’s report

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Group
Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements in
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that penod
In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are
required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

state whether applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unton
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are
also responstble for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulanties

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each director confirms that, so far as he 1s aware, there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors
are unaware and that each director has taken all the steps
that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to ensure that
the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Directors’ indemnities

The Company mantains directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its directors The Company has also granted
indemnities to each of its directors to the extent permitted by
law Qualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined
by section 234 of the Compames Act 2006) were In force
duning the year ended 31 March 2012 and remain in force, In
relaton to certain losses and lrabilities which the directers
may incur to third parties in the course of acting as directors
or employees of the Company or of any associated
company

Employee involvement

We remain committed to employee involvement throughout
the bustness Employees are kept well informed of the
performance and strategy of the Group through personal
briefings, regular meetings, personal letters home, email and
broadcasts by the Chief Executive and members of the
Group Board at key points in the year to all head office
employees and store management In addition many of our
store colleagues can join the bnefings by tefephone to hear
directly from the business These types of communication
are supplemented by our employee publications including,
“Your M&S' magazine, Plan A updates and DVD
presentations

More than 3,500 employees are elected onto Business
Involvement Groups (‘BIGs'} across every store and head
office location to represent therr colleagues i two-way
communication and consultation with the Company They
have continued to play a key role in a wide vanety of
business changes, in what has been a very busy year

The seventeenth meeting of the European Works Council
('EWC') (established in 1995} took place in July 2012 This
Council provides an additional forum for informing, consutting
with and involving employee representatives from the
countries in the European Community The EWC includes
members from our party owned companies established in the
Czech Republic and Greece, as well as representatives from
the Republic of Ireland and the UK The EWC will have the
opportuniuty to be addressed by the Chief Executive and
other senior members of the Company on issues that affect
the European business This will include the directors of
International and Multi-channet and the director of Plan A,
which all have an impact across the European Community

Directors and senior management regularly attend the
National Business Involvement Group (BIG) meetings They
visit stores and discuss with employees matters of current
Iinterest and concemn te both employees and the business
through meetings with local BIG representatives, specific
hstening groups and informal discussions The business has
continued to engage with employees and drive involvement
through a scheme called the BIG idea On a quarterly basis
the Company poses a question to gather 1deas and inhatives
on a number of areas including how we better serve
customers Several thousand ideas are put forward each
time and the winning employee receives an award and the
chance to see how their idea 1s then implemented by the
Company

Share schemes are a long-established and successful part of
our total reward package, encouraging and supporting
employee share ownership In particular, around 25,000
employees currently participate in Sharesave, the
Company's all employee Save As You Eamn Scheme Full
details of all schemes are given on pages 24 to 26 in this
report

We have a well established interactive Wellbeing website
called planahealth com, a completely bespoke wellbeing
website and service designed exclusively for M&S
employees It gives any employee the opportunity to access
a wealth of information, help and support We cover all areas
of wellbeing, from healthy eating and exercise, to help In
overcoming 1ssues such as stress, financtal challenges,




Group director’s report

achieving a positive work-hfe balance and problems with
sleeping

The response since its launch in May 2010 has been
excellent, with 11,500 employees making personal pledges
to improve a specific health or wellbeing tssue Employees
are able to interact with one another, post information about
clubs and groups in their area and gain access to information
about corporate projects which link to their personal health
pledges We have already received hundreds of testtimonials
from employees telling 1s that they are enjoying the
programme, feel better as a result and enjoy its
social/fcommunity based style

We maintain contact with retired staff through
communications from the Company and the Pension Trust
Member-nominated trustees have been elected to the
Pension Trust Board, inctuding employees and pensioners
We continue to produce a regutar Pensions Update
newsletter for members of our final salary pension scheme
and the M&S Retirement Plan

Equal opportunities

The Group 1s committed to an active equal opportunities
Policy from recruitment and selection, through training and
development, performance reviews and promotion to
rettrement It s our policy to promote an environment free
from diserimination, harassment and victimisation, where
everyone will receive equal treatment regardless of gender,
colour, ethric or national origin, disability, age, marnital status,
sexual onentation or religicn All decistons relating to
employment practices will be objective, free from bias and
based solely upon work criteria and individual ment The
Company 15 responsive to the needs of its employees,
customers and the community at large We are an
organisation which uses everyone's talents and abilities and
one where diversity 1s valued We were one of the first major
companies to remove the default retirement age in 2001 and
have continued to see an increase \n employees wanting to
work past the state retirement age Our oldest employee 1s
85 years old and joined the business at age 80 The
Company once again featured in The Times Top 50 places
for Women to work 1n Apri! 2012 and considers this highlights
how equal opportunities are avatlable for all

Employees with disabihities

It 1s our policy that people with disabilities should have full
and far consideration for all vacancies During the year, we
continued to demonstrate our commitment to interviewing
those people with disabilities wha fulfil the minmum cntena,
and endeavounng to retain employees in the workforce f
they become disabled dunng employment We will actively
retrain and adjust their environment where possible to allow
them to maximise their potential VWe continue to work with
external organisations to provide workplace opportunities
through our innovative Marks & Start scheme and by working
closely with JobCentrePlus

Essentizl contracts or arrangements

The Company Is required to disclose any contractual or other
arrangements which it considers are essential to its

business We have a wide range of suppliers for the
production and distribution of products to our customers
Whilst the loss of or disruption to certain of these

arrangements could temporanly affect the operations of the
Group, none are considered to be essential, with the
exception of certain warehouse operators and the provider of
the Company's E-commerce platform

Groceries supply code of practice

The Grocenes {Supply Chain Practices) Market Investigation
Order 2009 ('Order’} and The Grocenes Supply Cede of
Practice (‘GSCOP’) has been in force since February 2010

The Company operates a number of systems and controls to
ensure cormplance with the Order and GSCOP including he
following

- the terms and conditions which govern the trading
relationship between M&S and those of its suppliers that
supply grocenes to M&S incorporate GSCOP,

new suppliers are issues with information as required by the
Order,

-The Company has a Code Comphance Officer as required
under the Order, supported by our in-house legal
department, and

-Employee training on GSCOP 1s provided, ncluding annual
refresher programmes and new starter training

Under the Order and GSCOP, the Company is required to
submit an annual report detailling its compliance with GSCOP
to the Audit Committee for approval and to the office of Farr
Trading The Company submitted its report to the Group
Audit Commuttee on 11 May 2012 covenng the period from 1
April 2011 to 31 March 2012 There were no disputes
relating to GSCOP dunng the financial year ended 31 March
2012

Creditor payment policy
For all trade creditors, 1t 1s the Group's policy to

—agree the terms of payment at the start of business with
that supplier,

—ensure that supphers are aware of the terms of payment,
and

—pay n accordance with its contractual and other legal
cbligations

As the main trading company, Marks and Spencer plc, has a
policy concerning the payment of trade creditors as follows
—general merchandise payments are receved between 26
and 60 days after the stock was invoiced,

~food payments are received between 19 and 26 days after
the stock was invoiced, and

—distribution suppliers are paid monthly, for costs incurred in
that month, based on estimates, and payments are adjusted
quarterly to reflect any vanations to estimate

Trade creditor days for Marks and Spencer plc for the year
ended 31 March 2012 were 26 days, or 17 working days (last
year 26 days, or 17 working days), based on the ratio of
Company trade crediters at the end of the year to the
amounts invoiced dunng the year by trade creditors

Market value of properties

The directors believe that the open market value of the
properties of the Group exceeds ther net book value
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Charitable donations

During the year, and in line with our Plan A commitments,
the Group made charitable donations to support the
community of £11 4m (last year £12 3m), excluding
management costs and memberships These principally
comprised cash donations of £6 9m {last year £6 9m) which
included Breakthrough Breast Cancer, Macmillan Cancer
Support, Great Ormond Street hospital, UNICEF,
Groundwork, WWF, MCS, our Marks & Start programme and
local commurity donations We also donated £1 3m (last
year £1 3m) of employee time, prnincipally on fundraising and
volunteering, Marks & Start, school work experence
programmes As a business we have reduced our waste in
the last five years and now do not send anything to landfill
This reduction in waste 1s reflected in our overall reduction in
waste stock donations to a vanety of chanties, £3 2m (last
year £4 1m) to a vanety of chanties including Oxfam, The
Newlife Foundation and Shelter

We also had another particularly successful year supporting
a number of our charity partners n raising funds of £8 5m
{last year £10 9m) This pnncipally consisted of funds raised
from customer clothing donations to Oxfam through The
Clothing Exchange, funds raised by Groundwork as a result
of M&S support and employee and customer donations

Events after the reporting period

The details and impacts of events after the reporting penod
can be found in note 28 on page 38

Political donations

No political donations were made during the year ended 31
March 2012 Marks & Spencer has a policy of not making
donations to political organisations or independent election
candidates or incurnng political expenditure anywhere in the
world as defined in the Political Parties, Elections and
Referendums Act 2000

Significant agreements = change of control

There are a number of agreements to which the Company 18
party that take effact, alter or terminate upon a change of
control of the Company following a takeover bid Details of
the significant agreements of this kind are as follows

~the £267m Medium Term Notes 1ssued by the Company on
28 March 2007 and £400m Medium Term Notes 1ssued by
the Company on 30 November 2008 and the £300m Medium
Term Notes 1ssued by the Company on the 6 December
2011 to vanous instituttons {'MTN') and under the Group's
£3bn Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) programme contain
an option such that, upon a change of control event,
combined with a credit ratings downgrade {o below sub-
investment level, any holder of an MTN may require the
Company to prepay the principal amount of that MTN,

—the £250m puttable callable reset notes issued by the
Company to vanous institutions on 11 December 2007 under
the Group's £3bn EMTN programme contain an option such
that, upon a change of control event, combined with a credit
ratings downgrade to below sub-investment level, any holder
of an MTN may require the Company to prepay the principal
amount of that MTN,

—the $500m US Notes 1ssued by the Company to various
institutions on 6 December 2007 under section 144a of the
US Secunities Act contain an option such that, upon a
change of control event, combined with a credit ratings
downgrade to below sub-investment level, any helder of such
a US Note may require the Company to prepay the principal
amount of that US Note,

~the $300m US Notes 1ssued by the Company to various
institutions on 6 December 2007 under section 144a of the
US Secunties Act contain an option such that, upon a
change of control event, combined with a credit ratings
downgrade to below sub-investment level, any holder of such
a US Note may require the Company to prepay the principal
amount of that US Note,

~the £1 325bn Credit Agreement dated 29 September 2011
between the Company and varnous banks contains a
provision such that, upon a change of controf event, unless
new terms are agreed within 60 days, the facility under this
agreement will be cancelled with all outstanding amounts
becoming immediately payable with interest,

—the amended and restated Relationship Agreement dated 1
February 2012 (onginally dated 9 November 2004 as
amended on 1 March 2005), between HSBC and the
Company relating to M&S Maney, contains certain provisions
which address a change of control of the Company Upon a
change of control the existing nghts and obligations of the
parties in respect of M&S Money continue and HSBC gains
certain imited additional nghts in respect of existing
customers of the new controller of the Company Where a
third-party arrangement 1s in place for the supply of financial
services products to existing customers of the new controller,
the Company 1s required to procure the termination of such
arrangement as soon as reasonably practicable (whilst not
being required to do anything that would breach any contract
in place in respect of such arrangement) Where a third-party
arrangement 1$ so terminated, or does not exist, HSBC gains
certain exclusivity nghts in respect of the sale of financial
services products to the existing customers of the new
controller Where the Company undertakes a rebranding
exercise with the new controller following a change of control
(which ncludes any M&S brand in respect of the new
controller's business or vice versa), HSBC gains certain
termination rights (exercisable at its election) in respect of
the Relationship Agreement,

—the agreement between Marks and Spencer plec and Marks
and Spencer Pension Trust Limited (as trustee of The Marks
and Spencer Pension Scheme) (the 'Pension Fund') dated
12 May 2010 relating to Marks and Spencer Scotlish Limited
Parinership {the 'Partnership’) contains a clause such that,
upon a change of control of the Company, Marks and
Spencer plc shall elect that the Partnership either (1)
surrenders its discretion over the payment of annual
distnbutions to the Pension Fund, or (1} increases the rate at
which compensatory interest accrues on any annual
payments by the Partnership that Marks and Spencer plc has
elected (as general partner of the Partnership) to defer,

~The Company deoes not have agreements with any director
or employee that would provide compensation for loss of
office or employment resulting from a takeover except that
provisions of the Company’s share schemes and plans may
cause options and awards granted to employees under such
schemes and plans to vest on a takeover
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Going concern

In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the
financial statements, the directors have considered the
business activities as set out on pages 1 to 37 of the Marks
and Spencer Group ple Annual Report as well as the Group’s
principal nsks and uncertainties as set out on pages 45 to 47
of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report Based
on the Group's cash flow forecasts and projections, the
Board 1s satisfied that the Group will be able to operate
within the level of its faciliies for the foreseeable future For
this reason the Group continues to adopt the going concern
In preparing Its financial statements

Independent auditors

Resolutions to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the next Annual
General Meeting

On behalf of the Board

Jrehns

Amanda Mellor, Executive Director

London § September 2012




Independent auditors report’ to the members of Marks and Spencer plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the "“financial statements”) of Marks and Spencer plc for the 52
weeks ended 31 March 2012 which compnise the Consolidated income statement, the Consolidated and Company statement of
comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company statement of financtal position, the Consolidated and Company statement of
changes in equity, the Consolidated and Company statement of cash flows, and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the parent company financtal statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilites Statement set out on page 3, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, In giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit invoives abtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and company's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financiat and non-financial information in the Marks and
Spencer plc financial statements 2012 to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements |If we become aware of
any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implcations for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opmnien

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company's affars as at 31 March
2012 and of the Group's profit and Group’s and parent company's cash fiows for the year then ended,

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinien the information given in the Group Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
18 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparies Act 2008 requires us to report to you if, n our
opInIon

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
- certan disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- we have not received information and explanations we reguire for our audit

Stuart Watson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London 5 September 2012




Consolidated income étatement

52 weaks ended

52 weeks endad

Notes 31 March 2{3:‘:1; 2 April 2021"1‘
Revenue 2,3 9,934 3 9,740 3
"Operating profit - - _:' 2,3 7465 836 9
Finance mcome T B 6 483 96 6
Finance costs B (136 8) (152 9)
Profit before tax 4 658 0 7806
Income tax expense B 7 (168 4) {182 0)
Profit for the year 489 6 598 6
‘Attributable to T j T -
Equity shareholders of the Company B i o ) o 5131 8120
Non-controlling interests T T (23 5) (137)_
489 6 598 6
Non-GAAP measures_Underlying profit before tax _ o R
FProftbeforetax — _ — _ . 658 0 7806
Adjusted for
Profit on property disposals 5 - (29)
_IAS 18 Ireland one-off pension cr credit B . -1 = fen
IAS 36 ]rp;;%w}nent ofassets _ o _ ) 5 :: 449 B3
I{\_S 3_9 Fair value movement of ﬁnaﬂglgflﬁstrumem - . 5 (15 6) (ﬂ
IAS 39 Farr value movement of embedded denvaive ’ T T s 02 (20 3)
Strateglc programme costs [ 5 18 4 156
Underlying profit before tax 1 705 8 7143
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
Noles 31 March 2‘[;:1“21 2 Aprl 2(‘.;:1“11
Profit for the year 489 6 598 6
Other comprehensive ncome o o B o T
_Foreign currency translation differences 74&“ o ) sy (16 4)
Actuanal (Iosses_)lgams on retirement benefit schemes e 10 {189 9 2860
Tax on retirement benefit schemes T 504 (78 0)
Fair value movement on avallable-for-sale assets o 28 (93
_Cash flow and net investment hedges T i} B
= " farr value movements in _ea_uTt?(_ ) ’ 530 (_57—5)—
— reclassified and reported in net profit (23 0) 421
=~ amount recogmised mn inventories T T3 1y
Tax on cash flow h%e?aﬁﬁét investment hedges T T i (7 3) 194
Other comprehenswve (loss)iincome for the year, net of tax (121 Q) 174 8
Total comprehensive income for the year 368 6 7734
Attributable to o _ - —_—
_Equny shareholders of theiciompany 3921 786 8
Nen-controling interests {23 5) {13 4}
3686 7734




Consolidated statement of financial posttion

As at As at
31 March 2012 2 Agnil 2014
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets L . .
Intangible assets 13 584 3 5277
Property, plant and equipment B o o .14 4avess 46622
Investment property 159 160
Investment in joint ventures L o o 144 130
‘Other financial assets B e L 15 432 328
Retrement benefit asset o 10 913 182 6
Trade and other recevables 16 270 2 2761
Dernvative financial instruments 20 44 2 218
5,853 4 57322
Current assets
_Inventories L i e . .. 6819 6853
Otherf‘nanmal assets _:k._. o _ o o 15 2_802 2 2807 7
Trade and other recevables 16 2530 250 3
Exa_rtvattvﬁnanCIal instruments 20 670 184
Current tax recevable N L e 1 6 i 16
Cash and cash equnvatentsﬁ - ) o 17 196 1 4702
4,00t 8 4,233 5
Total assets 9,855 2 9,965 7
Liabilities
Current liabiies e e o
“Trade and other payables _ - 18 14491 13476
Borrowings and other financiat habilities 19 3277 602 3
Partnership habilty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme S I A A A
Denvative financial instruments 2 80 5 . 507
“Provistons T T T T T 21 84 227
Current tax habilifies 87 8 1150
2,005 4 22102
Non-current iabilities "
Retirement benefit deficit 10 133 141
Trade and other payables o T T YT TTq8 T T 2808 2823
Borrowings and other fi ﬁnanmal lrabilities 19 1,948 1 _1,9241
Denvative financial instruments T 7 - T¢ 272 375
Prowsions - T T T T 240 220
Deferred tax habilities 22 1957 196 5
24891 24565
Total habihties 44945 46667
Net assets 53607 52990
Equity
Issued share Ear_alt_al T T i N & T 7125 7125
Share premium account o o 3861 386 1
_Capital redemption reserve e 80 ) 80
Hedgng reserve h 14 8 {11 3)
Otherreserve o e e 4279 4998
Retained earnings 38228 3,700 0
Total shareholders’ equity 53721 52951
Non-controlling interests in equity {11 4) 39
Total equity 53607 52980

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for 1ssue on 5 September 2012
The financial statements also comprise the notes on pages 12 to 39

Alan Stewant Chief Finance Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

orglr?aarr: pres:r:i: radfn?,?r:lc:: Hezging Other  Retaned comr;ill?r:‘g-
capital account reserve  reserve feserve’  earnings Total interest Total
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 4 Apnl 2010 7125 386 1 80 116 5717 31093 479892 173 48165
Profit/{loss) for the year - - - - - 8120 6120 (13 4) 598 6
_Other comprehensive income
Formgn currency translation - - (0_7)— - (15 7—)_ —h—s 43 o (13 d:)‘
Actuarial gamns on retrement ‘benefit schemes = - - - - T - T 2880 2860 - 2860
Tax on retirement benefit schemes - - - - - (780) (780) - (780)
“Fair value movement 1n equity on available for sale - L - - EECEECE R )
Cash flow and net investment hedges - B B T
- fair value movements - - - (60 4) - 26 (578) - (578
- reclassified and reported in net profit’ T T T T Az ST T D T e o s
= " “amount recognised in nventones - Ty T o T Iy - (112
Tax on cash flow hedges and net
investment hedges - - — 73 - 121 19 4 - 104
Other comprehensive mmcome - - - (229 - 197 7 174 8 - 1748
Total comprehenswve (expensesyincome - - - (229) - 8087 7868 (13 4) 7734
Transactlons with owners
Dividends - - - - - {(2508) {250 8) - (2508)
Recognition of financial hability® T ik T D A k)
Cred for share-based payments TS 1 SN I A S B
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 01 01 - 01
At 2 Apnl 2011 7125 3861 80 (113) 4998 37000 52951 39 52990
At 3 Apnl 2011 L 7125 3861 80 _(1 13 4998 37000 52851 39 52990
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - - - 5131 5131 (235) 4896
Qther comprehensive income - T T -
_Foregn currency transtaion . - - - (11 - (140y (1571} - (181)
Actuaral losses on retirement benefit schemes - - - - - (189 9y (1899) - (189 9)
Tax on retirement benefit schemes - - e - - 504 504 - 504
Fair value movement in equity on avallable for sale - - - - - (28 (28 - (28)
Cash flow and net investment hedges T T T T T T
- farr value movements T - Ta38 - "92 830 - 530
—  reclassified and reported In net profit’ - - - {230 - - {230) - {230
- amount recogmised in nventores T e T e - 71A3‘:7_— T - 137 - 37
Tax on cash flow hedges and net
investment hedges : - - - 73 - - @9 - (73)
Other comprehensive Income - - - 261 - (147 1) (121 0} - (1210}
Total comprehensive income/{expenses) - - - 261 — 3660 3921 (235) 3686
Transactions with owners ) _ . o o . .
Dvdends ] - -7 - - - (2138) (2738) - (273 8)
Transactlons with non-controlling sharqh_olders - - - - - {6 4) (6 4) 82 18
Recogmuon of fmanma! lsabmty L o - - - - (11yy - (719) - (719)
Credit for share-based payments } - - - - - 325 325 - 325
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 43 43 - 43
At 31 March 2012 7125 3861 80 148 4279 38228 53721 (114} 53607
1 Thna Other resene mncludes discretionary distnbutions to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Schame of £427 9m (last year £409 8m) (see nota 11)
2 The 'Retained earmungs reserve includes a cumulative £5 1m gain (last year £15 1m gan) in tha cumency reserve
3 Amounts reclassified and reported in nat profit have all been recorded 11 cost of sales
4 Following the Marks & Spencer Group pic's payment of an intenm dividend in relation 10 2011/12 the associated distnbution of £71 9m bacame payable to the Marks & Speancer UK

Pension Scheme and has been recoprused as a hability {see note 11)

10



Consolidated cash flow information

§2 weeks ended

52 weeks ended

Nows ) March 20{1 nﬁ 2 Apni 2(}1 "1]
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 25 1,352 1 1,385 2
Income tax pad (149 1) {185 3)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,203 0 1,199 9
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A - _ (584 3)  (3273)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment i o R o - 35
Purchase of intangible assets . _(1564) (126 5)
Purchase of current financial assets L . (448) (44 3)
Interest receved o - I 5 a1
Net cash used in investing activities {757 8) (4980 5)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid {135 9) {146 4)
Cash (outflow)/inflow from borrowings (41 4) 18 4
_Repayment of syndicated bank facilty = AT Y)
Movement in parent coempany loan - ___ T T _ ; i L §91 117
‘Issue of medium-term notes ST 2955 =
Redemption of medium-term notes (307 6) -
Monetisation of derivative assets - 328
_Decrease in obhgations under fngng_g_lga_sg_s_ o o L (13 0) __asn
_Payment of liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme L . (71 9) (67 &)
Equity dividends paid B T - (273 8) _“(2_55 8)-
Purchase of own shares by employee trust o o T T (13 2) 20
Net cash used in financing activities 511 %) (647 4)
Net cash (outflow)inflow from activities ) ) o ) _{658) 820
Effects of exchange rate changes T T T Tagl T ag
Opening net cash 2635 2027
Closing net cash 26 195 8 2635
52 weeks anded 52 weaks ended
Nowes 31 Mareh 2021 rﬁ 2 Apnl 20£1 n:
Reconcilation of net cash flow to movementin netdebt o o L _ o
Opening net debt 690 9 535 1
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from activities (65 8) 620
(Decrease)llncrease in current flnanmal assets (53) 443
Decrease in debt ﬂnanc:ng T T T 1384 2382
7Partnér;ﬁ|p I|ab|hty to the Marks &_Spencer UK Pension Scheme (non—cash) T T (71 9) T __(7_1_ 9)
Exchange and other non-cash movements {17) (116 8)
Movement in net debt {6 3) 155 8
Closing net debt 26 684 6 6908
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS i1C} interpretations, as
adopted by the European Linion, and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to compantes reporting under
IFRS

In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial
statements, the directors have considered the business
activities as set out on pages 1 to 37 of the Marks and
Spencer Group plc Annual Report as well as the Group's
principal nsks and uncertainties as set out on pages 46 to 47
of the Marks and Spencer Group pic Annual Report Based on
the Group's cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board 15
satisfied that the Group will be able to operate within the level
of 1ts facilities for the foreseeable future For this reason the
Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
its financial statements

There are no IFRS or IFRS IC interpretations that are effective
for the first time 1n this financial penod that have had a matenal
impact on the Group

The following IFRS, IFRS IC interpretatons and amendments
have been i1ssued but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ was amended in June 2011 and

1s effective for penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 The
impact will be to replace interest cost and expected return on
plan assels with a net interest amount that 1s calculated

by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit lability/
asset The Group I1s yet to assess the fulb impact of this
amendment

There are no other IFRS or IFRS IC interpretations that are not
yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group

The Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership has taken
an exemption under paragraph 7 of the Partnership {Accounts)
Regulations 2008 for the requirement 1o prepare and deliver
financial statements in accordance with the Companies Act

A summary of the Company's and the Group's accounting
polictes 1s given below

Accounting convention

The financial statements are drawn up on the histoncal cost
basis of accounting, except as disclosed in the accounting
policies set out below

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of Marks and Spencer plc and all its subsidianes
made up to the year end date Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bnng the
accounting policies used in ine with those used by the Group

Subsidianes

Subsidiary undertakings are ali entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting nghts  Subsidiary undertakings acquired dunng the year
are recorded using the acquisihion method of accounting and
their results are included from the date of acquisition

The separable net assets, ncluding property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, of the newly acquired
subsichary undertakings are incorperated into the consoiidated
financial statements on the basis of the farr value as at the
effective date of control

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are ehminated

Revenue

Revenue comprises sales of goods to customers outside the
Group less an appropnate deduction for actual and expected
retumns, discounts and loyalty scheme vouchers, and 1s stated
net of value added tax and other sales taxes Revenue Is
recognised when goods are delivered and the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer

Divtdends

Final dividends are recorded in the financial statements In
the penod in which they are approved by the Company’s
shareholders Intenm dvidends are recorded i the penod
in which they are approved and paid

Pensions

Funded pension plans are i place for the Group's UK
employees and some employees overseas

For defined benefit pension schemes, the difference between the
farr value of the assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation 1s recogrised as an asset or liability in the
statement of financial posiion The defined benefit obhgation 1s
actuanally calculated using the projected unit credit method

The service cost of providing retirement benefits to employees
during the year, together with the cost of any benefits relating to
past service, 1s charged to operating profit in the year

A credit representing the expected return on the assets of

the retirement benefit schemes dunng the year 1s included within
finance income This 1s based on the market value of the assets
of the schemes at the stan of the financial year

A charge 1s also made within finance income representing

the expected increase In the habilities of the retirement benefit
schemes dunng the year This anses from the habilities of

the schemes being one year closer to payment

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised immediately in the
statement of comprehensive Income

Payments to defined contnbution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense as they fall due

Intangible assets

A Goodwill Goodwll ansing on consohdation represents the
excess of the consideration transferred and the amount of any
non-controling interest In the acquiree over the far value of the
identifiable assets and habilibes (including intangible assets) of
the acquired entity at the date of the acquisition Goodwill 1s
recognised as an asset and assessed for impairment at least
annually Any mpairment s recognised immediately in the
income statement

B Brands Acquired brand values are held on the statement

of financial position intially at cost Defined life intangibles are
amorised on a straight-ine basis over their estimated useful
Iwves Indefinite hfe intangibles are tested for impairment at least
annually Any impairment in value 1s recogmised immediately in
fhe income statement

C Software intangibles Where computer software 15 not

an integral part of a related item of computer hardware, the
software 1s treated as an intangibte asset Capitalised software
costs include external direct costs of goods, services and payroll
retated costs for employees who are directly associated with the
project

Capitalised software development costs are amortised on

a straight-ine basis over their expected economig lives, normally
between three and ten years Computer software under
development is held at cost less any recogmised impairment loss
Any impaimment in value 1s charged to the income statement
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Notes to the financial statements continued
1 Accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s policy Is to state property, plant and equipment

at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impaiment loss Property s not revalued for accounting
purposes Assets in the course of construction are held at cost
less any recogmised imparment loss Caost includes professional
fees and, for quahfying assets, borrowing costs

Depreciation 1s provided to write off the cost of tangible non-
current assets {iIncluding investment properties), less esttmated
residual values, by equal annual instalments

as follows

— freehold land - not depreciated,

— freehold and leasehold buildings with a remaining lease
term over 50 years — depreciated to their residual value
over ther estimated remaining economic lives,

- leasehold buldings with a remaining lease term of less
than 50 years — over the remaining penod of the lease,
and

- fixtures, fittngs and equipment — 3 to 25 years according
to the estimated life of the asset

Residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed
annually Depreciation is charged on all additions to, or disposals
of, depreciating assets in the year of purchase or disposal

Any impairment in value s charged to the income statement
Leasing

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements and the nsks
and rewards are substantially transferred to the Group (finance
leases) the assets are treated as if they had been purchased
outnght, and the corresponding hability to the leasing cormpany 1s
included as an obligation under finance leases Depreciation on
leased assets 15 charged to the ncome statement on the same
basis as owned assets, unless the term of the lease is shorter
Leasing payments are treated as consisting of capital and
interest elements and the interest 1s charged to the Income
statement

All other leases are operating leases and the costs in respect of
aperating leases are charged on a straight-ine basis over the
lease term The value of any lease incentive received to take on
an operating lease (for example, a rent free penod})

15 recogrised as deferred income and 1s released over the life of
the lease

Leasehold prepayments

Payments made to acquire leasehold fand are included
In prepayments at cost and are amortised over the life of
the lease

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes shont-term deposits with
banks and other financial instrtutions, with an intial matunty of
three months or less and credit card payment received within 48
tours

Inventories

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value using the retail method, which 1s computed on the basis of
selling price less the approprate trading margin All inventones
are finished goods

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obhgation as a result of a past event, and it 1s probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation Provisions are
measured at the best esimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the end of the reporting penod, and are
discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity-setiled share-based payments to
certain employees A farr value for the equity-settled share
awards 15 measured at the date of grant The Group measures
the fair value of each award using the Black-Scholes model
where appropnate

The farr value of each award 1s recognised as an expense over
the vesting pened on a straight-hine basis, after allowing for an
estmate of the share awards that will eveniually vest The level
of vesting 1s reviewed annually, and the charge 1s adjusied to
reflect actual and estimated levels of vesting

Foreign currencies

The results of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the
weighted average of monthly exchange rates for revenue
and profits The statements of financral position of overseas
subsidiaries are translated at year end exchange rates The
resulting exchange differences are dealt with through
reserves and reported 1n the consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income

Transactions denomunated in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Foreign
currency monetary assets and habibbes held at the end of the
reparting period are translated at the closing balance sheet rate
The resulting exchange gain or loss 1s recognised within the
incoeme statement

Taxaticn

Tax expense compnses current and deferred tax Tax s
recognised in the Income statement, except to the extent it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive incormne or
directly in equity, in which case the related tax is also recogrised
in other comprehensive income or directly In equity

Deferred tax is accounted for using a temporary difference
approach, and I1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets
and habilties in the statement of financial position and the
corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable
profit Deferred tax 1s calculated based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
habilities, applying tax rates

and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period

Deferred tax habilties are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences Deferred tax habiities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled by the
Group and 1t 1s probable that the difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax liabilities are not recogmsed on temporary
differences that anse from goodwill which 1s not deductible for tax
purposes

Deferred tax assels are recogrised to the extent it 1s
probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which
the deductible temporary differences can be uthised The
camrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to he recovered

Deferred tax assets and habiities are not recognised
In respect of temporary differences that anse on nibial
recognition of assets and hiabilities acquired other than
In a busiess combination

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group's
statement of financial posihion when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument

B

13



Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

A Trade receivables Trade receivables are recorded initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
Generally, this results in ther recognition at nominal value less
any allowance for any doubtful debts

B Investments and other financial assets Investments and
other financial assets are classified as erther ‘available-for-sale’
or ‘fair value through profit or loss' They are inhially measured at
fair value, including transaction costs, with the exception of 'fair
value through profit or loss’ Financial assets held at farr value
through profit or loss are intially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed

Where secunties are designated as fair value through profit or
loss’, gains and losses ansing from changes in far value are
included in net profit or loss for the penecd For ‘available-for-sale’
investments, gains or losses ansing from changes in fair value
are recognised In comprehensive income, untit the secunty 1s
disposed of or 1s determined to be impaired, at which tme the
cumulative gain or loss previcusly recognised

in comprehensive income 15 included in the net profit or loss for
the penod Equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whaose far value cannot be reliably
measured by other means are held at cost

C Classification of financial habilities and equity Financial
habihties and equity instruments are classified according

to the substance of the contractual arangements entered
into An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its labilties

D Bank borrowings Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts
are ihially recarded at fair value, which equals the proceeds
receved, net of direct Issue costs Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue
costs, are accounted for using an effective interest rate method
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the penod in which they anse

E Loan notes Long-term loans are inihally measured at fair
value and are subsequently held at amortised cost unless the
loan 1s hedged by a denvative financial Instrument in which case
hedge accounting treatment will apply

F Trade payables Trade payables are recorded initially at
farr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
Generally this results in their recognition at therr nominal value

G Equity instruments Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the consideration received, net
of direct 1ssue costs

Denvative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group primarily uses interest rate swaps and forward foreign
currency contracts {0 manage its exposures to fluctuating interest
and foreign exchange rates These instruments are initially
recognised al fair value on the trade date and are subsequently
remeasured at thewr far value at the end of the reporting pencd
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss 1S
dependent on whether the derivative I1s designated as a hedging
instrument and the nature of the item being hedged

The Group designates certain hedging denvatives as either

- ahedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or change
in the cash flows of a recognised asset or liability (a cash flow
hedge),

— 2 hedge of the exposure to change in the fair value of
a recognised assel or liability (a farr value hedge), or

- 2 hedge of the exposure on the translation of net investments
In foreign entities (a net investment hedge)

Underlying the definthon of fair value 1s the presumption
that the Group s a going concern without any intentian
of matenally curtailing the scale of its operations

At inception of a hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
and the hedged tem are documented and prospective
effectiveness testing 1s perfomed During the hfe of the hedging
relationship, effectiveness testing 1s continued to ensure the
nstrument remains an effective hedge of the transaction
Changes In the farr value of denvative financral instruments that
do not qualfy for hedge accounting are recogrised in the income
statement as they anse

A Cash flow hedges Changes in the farr value of denvative
financial Instruments that are designated and effective as hedges
of future cash flows are recogmised in comprehensive income
and any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement If the firm commitment or forecast transaction
that 15 the subject of a cash flow hedge results in the recognition .
of a nen-financial asset or habity, then, at the time the asset or
hability 1s recognised, the associated gaing or losses on the
dernvative that had previously been recognised in comprehensive
income are included In the initial measurement of the asset or
liabilty For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an
asset or a hability, amounts defemred in comprehensive income
are recognised in the income statement in the same penod In
which the hedged tems affect net profit or loss

B Farr value hedges For an effective hedge of an exposure to
changes in the faur value, the hedged item is adjusted for
changes in far value attributable to the nsk being hedged with
the corresponding entry in the income statement Gans and
losses from remeasuning the denvative, or for non-dervatives the
foreign currency component of the carrying amoundt, are
recogrised in the income statement

C Net investment hedges Changes in the far value of
derivative or non-derivative financial instruments that are
designated and effective as hedges of net investments are
recognised in comprehensive iIncome and any ineffective portion
18 recognised immediately tn the income statement

Changes In the farr value of denvative financial instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recogrised in the
income statement as they anse

D Discontinuance of hedge accounting Hedge accounting 1s
discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or I1s sold,
terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument recognised in comprehensive Income IS
retained in equity untl the forecast transaction occurs Ifa
hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recogrised in comprehensive income 1S
transferred to net profit or loss for the penod

The Group does not use denvatives to hedge income statement
translation exposures

Embedded denvatives

Dervatves embedded in other financial instruments or other host
contracts are freated as separate dervatives when their nisks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of

the host contracts and the host contracts are not camed at farr
value, with unrealised gains or [osses reported in the Income
statement Embedded derivatives are camed in the statement of
financial posion at fair value from the inception of the host
contract

Changes n far value are recognised wathin the income
statement dunng the penod in which they anse
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Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the
Group to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal
experience and other factors, Inciuding expectations of future
events that are believed {o be reasonable under the
circumstances Actual results may differ from these estimates
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant nsk of
causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and llabiltties are

A Impairment of goodwill and brands The Group 1s required to
test, at least annually, whether the goodwill or brands have
suffered any mpaimment The recoverable amount is determined
based on value in use calculations The use of this method
requires the estimation of future cash flows and the choce of a
suitable discount rate In order to calculate the present value of
these cash flows Where there 1s a non-controlling interest,
goodwill 1s tested for the business as a whole This involves a
notional Increase to goodwill, to reflect the non-controlfing
shareholders' interest Actual

outcomes could vary from those calculated See note 13

for further detaills

B Impairment of property, plant and equipment and computer
software Property, plant and equipment and computer software
are reviewed for impatimment if events or changes in
crecumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable When a review for mparment 1s conducted, the
recoverable amount 13 determined based

on value In use calculations prepared on the basis of
management’s assumptions and estimates See notes 13

and 14 for further detalls

C Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of computer software Depreciation and
amorhisation 18 provided so as to write down the assets to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives as set

out above The selection of these residual values and estimated
lives requires the exercise of management Judgement See notes
13 and 14 for further details

D Post-retrement benefits

The determination of the pension cost and defined benefit
obligation of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes
depends on the selection of certan assumptions which include
the discount rate, inflation rate, salary growth, mortality and
expected return on scheme assets Differences ansing from
actual expenences or future changes in assumptions

will be reflected m subsequent periods See note 10 for

further details of assumptions and note 11 for critical jJudgements
assoclated with the Marks & Spencer UK

Pension Scheme interest in the Marks and Spencer Scottish
Limited Partnership

E Refunds and loyalty scheme accruals Accruals for sales
returns and loyaity scheme redemptions are estmated on the
basis of histoncal returns and redemptions and these are
recorded so as to allocate them to the same period as the
ornginal revenue 1s recorded These accruals are reviewed
regularly and updated to reflect management's latest best
estimates, however, actual returns and redemptions coutd vary
from these estimates

Non-GAAP performance measures

The directors believe that the underlying profit and earnings per
share measures provide addittonal useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance of the business
These measures are consistent with how underlying business
performance 13 measured internally The underlying profit before
tax measure 1 net a recognised profit measure under IFRS and
may not be directly comparable with adjusted profit measures

used by other companes The adjustments made to reported
profit before tax are to exclude the following

profits and losses on the disposal of properties,
significant and one-off impairment charges that distort
underlying trading,

costs refating to strategy changes that are not considered
normal operating costs of the underlying business,
one-~off pension credits ansing on changes of the defined
benefit pension scheme rules, and

non-cash fair value movemenis in financial instruments
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Segmental infermation

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reporting on components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to allocate resources to the segments and to assess therr performance

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive directors of Marks and Spencer Group plc The executive
directors review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources, across each operating segment
The operating segments are UK and International which are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the executive

directors

The UK segment consists of the UK retall business and UK franchise operations The International segment consists of
Marks & Spencer owned businesses in the Republic of Ireland, Europe and Asia, together with international franchise operations

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating segments based on a measure of operating profit This measurement
basis excludes the effects of non-underlying items from the operating segments Central costs are all classified as UK costs and
presented within UK operating profit The executive directors also monitor revenue within the segments To increase transparency, the
Group has decided to include an additional voluntary disclosure analysing revenue within the reportable segments, by subcategory

The following 1s an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment

2012 2011
Management Adjustment’ Statutory Management Ad]ustman12 Statutary
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Gener&l Merchandise _ o . 42415 {46 4} 41851 42730 (394 42336
Food 47188 (45 7) 46731 45439 (44 5) 4 499 4
UK revenue 8,960 3 (82 1) 8,868 2 88169 (83 9) 87330
Franchsed 3794 - 3794 3437 - 3437
Owned 689 4 27 686 7 6658 (22) 663 6
International revenue 1,068 8 (27) 1,066 1 10095 {22) 1,007 3
Group revenue 10,0291 {94 8) 9,034 3 9826 4 {86 1} 9,740 3
UK cperating proft” 6766 _ _ (186) 6580 677 9 11 6790
International operating profit 133 4 {44 9) 885 1470 109 157 9
Group operating profit 8100 {63 5) 746 5 8249 120 8369
Financemcome "~ 3271 156 483 423 843 966
Finance costs {136 8) - (136 8) (152 9) - (152 9)
Profit before tax 7059 (47 9) 658 0 7143 66 3 7806

1 UK operating profid includes a contnbution of £50 7m (last year £35 2m) in respect of fees recerved from HSBC in relation 10 M&S Maoney

2 Adjustments to revenua relate to revenue deduciions recognised In cost of sales for management accounting purposes Management prafit excludes profits and losses on the
disposal of properties impairment charges penston credits ansing on changes of the detined benefit pension schemes non-cash (ar vatue movements in financial nstruments and
costs relating to strategic changes that are not considerad normal operating costs of the underlying business {see nole 5)

Other segmental information

2012 2011
UK Intarnational Total UK International Total
£m Em £m £m £m

Additions to property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (excluding goodwili) 6714 66 1 737 5 463 6 279 491 5
Depreciation and amortisation ... 4358 343 470 1 4345 330 467 5
Impa_lm]_e_nt_agd asset wnte~offshﬁ L _ 73 __ 505 578 34 - 34
Total assets 88289 1.026 2 9,865 2 8,909 2 1,056 5 99657
Non-current assets 49348 9186 58534 47809 951 3 57322
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Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Expense analysis

2012 2011
Underying Adjustmants Total Underlying Adjustments Totat
£m £m £m Em £m £m
_Revenue e 9,934 3 - 99343 97403 ____ _ _ - 87403
Cost of sales L (6,179 1) - (6,179 1) (6,0156) = (6,0158)
Gross profit T 3,755 2 - 37552 37247 T 37247
‘Seling and administrative expenses . _{30219; = (30219  (2es87ny 00000 - (29597)
Other operating income 76 7 - 767 59 9 - 539
Non-GAAP adjustments to underlying profit
(see note 5) - {63 5) (63 5) - 120 120
Operating profit 8100 (63 6) 746 5 824 9 120 8369
The selling and administrative expenses are further analysed below
2012 2011
£m £m
Employee costs (see note 10A) o L . ) o o 1_252 G 1,263 5
QOccupancy costs T B - ] 6379 5853
Reparrs, renewals and mantenance ofpropety L 101 4 BRLE:S
Depreciation, amortisation and asset write-offs I 4797 4675
Other costs o . 5603 5416
Selling and administrative expenses 30219 29597
4 Profit before taxation
The following 1tems have been included in arnving at profil before taxation
2012 2011
£m £m
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) g1 30)
A(iogﬂo_ﬂﬂnﬂyggﬂtg_r_:e_s__rggognused as an expense 6,127 0 57818
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment . - T T
- owned assets - oo o . ST, T o 3935 4033
—  under finance leases o . 13 132
‘Amortisation of intangible assets T T 653 510
"Profit on property disposals T B e T T - TRy
Operating lease rentals payable o L - R, o
~  property 2787 2476
—  fixtures, fittings and equipment T T T 78 87

Included in administrative expenses 1s the auditors’ remuneration, including expenses for audit and non-audit services, payable
to the Company’s auditers PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its associates as follows

2012 2031

£m £m

Annual audtt of the Company and the consolidated financial statements 10 10
Other services pursuant to legislation ’ :A:A L h :_;_ :J B o 03 01
Tax services T T B 7 T 04 06
Other services 01 01
18 18
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Notes to the financial statements continued

5 Non-GAAP performance measures

The adjustments made to reported profit before tax are income and charges that are one-off in nature, significant and distort
the Group’s underlying performance These adjustments include

—  Profit and loss on the disposal of properties — these are one-off in nature and therefore create volatiity in reported earnings,

- 1AS 19 credit ansing from changes to the Marks and Spencer treland defined benefit pension scheme rules whereby members’
future pensionable pay increases have been capped at 4 0%,

— IAS 36 impairment of assets — due to the continuing dechine of the Greek economy, the carrying value of the Marks and Spencer
Marinopoulos B V goadwill has been fully impaired to reflect its recoverable value (note 13) and the net book value
of property, plant and equipment In loss making stores in the Greece group have been impaired (note 14) Last year, the value of
an investment property was impaired to reflect its recoverable value, in ine with its current market value,

- |AS 39 far value movement on the Czech put option — the put option value has been revised to reflect the latest three year
business plan,

— |AS 39 farr value movement of the embedded derivative in a lease contract based upon the expected future RPI versus the lease
contract in which rent increases are capped at 2 5%, with a floor of 1 5%, and

—  Strategic programme costs relate to the strategy announcements made in November 2010 and include the costs associated with
the Focus on the UK plans This includes brand segmentation and business integration costs, asset wnte-offs, accelerated
depreciation and exit from technology in the prior year These costs are not considered normal operating costs
of the business

The adjustments made to reported profit before tax to arrive at underlying profit before tax are

2012 2011
Note £m £m

Profit on property disposals _ _ e e D29
_1AS 19 freland one-off pensuon credit L o= 107
1AS 36 Impaiment of assets B 13,14 (44 9) 63)
_|AS 39 Far value movement of financial instrument o B _ 6, 20 1586 543
IAS 39 Farr value movement of of embedded denvative . 2 ©2 203
Strateg|c programme costs - - o 118 4) (15 6)
Total adjustments (47 9) 663

6 Finance income/costs

2011

2012 restated

£m £m

_Bank and other interest recewvable o o o A . X
“Pension finance Income (net) (see note 11E) 2586 376
_Underlying finance mgome o - . %27 423
Fair value movement on financial nstrument (see note 5) 156 543
Finance iIncome 48 3 966
FAeAe“p‘é;te;I“)Ié;n— the transfer of of derlvatlve agée:"ts ?o“tmrfe pensmn fund _tu _______— :——_ ,,:: T ﬁ_ = W_QQFL
Interest an bark borrowmgs B (55) 77
Interest payable on syndicated bank faciity o . i 30y (18
Intereﬂ nggpﬁz_on medium-term not notes ) (1 264)  (12689)
Interest payable on finance leases Q7 (4 2)
Unwind of discounts on financial instruments (12) (3 8)
Finance costs (136 8) (152 9)
Net finance costs {88 5) {56 3)

The fair value movement on financial instrument represents the valuation of the put option over the 49% non-controlling interest in the
share capital of Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a 8 This excludes the annual unwind of the discount on the financial instrument
which 15 included in underlying finance costs (see note 20)




Notes to the financial statements continued

7 Income tax expense

A Tax charge

2012 2011
£€m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 3 ~ o
- current year T T B 1759 2158
- adpustments in respect of prior years ) S @3 (86}
UK current tax - - - 1866 2072
QOverseas current tax i 116 111
Total current tax 178 2 218 3
Deferred tax L o
=7 Tongnation and reversal of temporary differences (10 5) {30 41
— adstments In respect of prior years 140 72
- changes in tax rate o, oo, ermT/m e Ty T "_(1W3_3) o m*f(1-3-1“)m
Tota! deferred tax (see note 22) (9 8) {36 3)
Tota! income tax expense 168 4 182 0
B Tax reconciliation
2012 2041
£m £m
Profit before tax G658 0 780 6
Tax at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 26% (last year 28%) 1711 21886
Depreciation, charges and other amounts on non-qualifying fixed assets . 36 19
Other ;nt_;aae_a_ﬁ_d_expense_sn_cnttaable or deductible . o oy My
Deferred tax rate change benefit (13 1) 12 9)
Overseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the UK~ o 86) (42)
Benefit of current year losses not recogmsed 143 73
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior penods T a7 64_)
_Adjustments to underlying profit o . o
Profit on property disposals T o _ T _ T T (0 5)
IAS 19 freland one-off penmo?credlt T T T o T T T - (‘i 7
IAS 36 Impairment of assets e o mr 18
1AS 39 Fair vaiue movement of fl_n_anCIaI nstrument A o ) = 40 __ (152)
Deferred tax rate change benefit {0 2) (0 2)
Total income tax expense 168 4 182 0

The effective tax rate was 25 6% (last year 23 3%) and the underlying effective tax rate was 24 5% (last year 25 1%)

On 21 March 2012, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced the main rate of corporation tax will reduce from 26% to 24% from 1
Apnl 2012 This change of rate became substantively enacted for the purposes of IAS 12 “Income Taxes" on 26 March 2012 when the
House of Commons passed a resolution in respect of it under the provisional Collection of Taxes Act 1968 The Group has remeasured
its UK deferred tax assets and habilities at the end of the reporting period at 24%, which has resulted in the recogmtion of a deferred
tax credit of £13 3m 1n the income statement {reducing the total effective tax rate by 2 0%}, and the recognition of a deferred tax credit
of £1 8m in other comprehensive income ,

The Chancellor further stated his intention to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013 and a further 1%
reduction to 22% from 1 April 2014 These changes have not been substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial position
Had these changes been enacted, then the cumulative effects would have been credits to the income statement of £19 9m {23%) or

£26 5m (22%), and credits to other comprehensive income of £2 7m (23%) or £3 6m (22%)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

8 Dividends
2012 2011 2012 2011
par share per share £m £m
Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Paid final dvidend T 0 “_ﬁheTp* 45_35 1739 1510
Paid mtenm dividend - T 35 35 997 998
9 6p 8 8p 2736 2508

In addition, the directors have proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2012 of 6 1p per share amounting to a
dividend of £173 9m In hne with the requirements of 1AS 10 — ‘Events after the Reporting Pernod’, this dividend has not been
recogmsed within these results

9 Employees

A Aggregate remuneration
The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of Group employees were

2012 2011

Total Totat

£m £m

Wages and salaries o - e 10604 10763
Social secunty costs o o L } - o777 785
Pension costs T T T T i 577 600
Share-based payments (seenote12) 2 0 N7
Employee welfare and other personnel costs _ 480 a1z
Capitalised staff costs ] B (21 7) (20 2}w
Aggregate remuneration o 12526 12635
One-off pension credit (see nole 5) - (197}
Total aggregate remuneration 12526 12528
Details of key management compensation are given in note 27
B Average monthly number of employees

2012 2014
UK stores
~ management and supervisory categories _ o 5,784 5,696
- Tother o B T 65474 63,005
UK head office T - e T T o S
- management and supervisory categories 2782 2,453
T T 718 j
Overseas T T ) T 6,450H | 6.334
Total average monthly number of employees 81,208 78,169

If the number of hours worked was converted on the basis of a normal working week, the equivalent average number of full-ime
employees would have been 57,054 {last year 54,675}

C Directors' emoluments

Emoluments of directars of the Company are summansed below Further details are given i the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual
Remuneration Report on pages 54 to 67

2012 2011

£m £m

Highest paid director 1,682 4,382
Aggregate emoluments 2,386 4,711

No directors (last year nil) accrued retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme
The highest paid direclor has not exercised any share options during the current and prior years
The highest paid director was not awarded any performance shares (last year nil) in relation to the Group's long-term incentive plan

20




Notes to the financia! statements continued

10 Retirement benefits

The Group provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
This has a defined benefit section, which was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 Apnl 2002, and a defined contribution section
which has been open to new members with effect from 1 Apnl 2003

The defined benefit section operates on a final satary basis and at the year end had some 14,000 active members (last year 15,000),
56,000 deferred members (last year 56,000) and 51,000 pensioners (last year 51,000) At the year end, the defined contribution
section had some 9,000 active members {last year 9,000) and some 2,000 deferred members (last year 2,000}

The Group also operates a small funded defined benefit pension scheme In the Republic of Ireland Retirement benefits also include a
UK post-retirement heaithcare scheme and unfunded retirement benefits

Within the total Group retirement benefit cost of £32 1m (last year £22 4m excluding a one-off pensian credit of £10 7m), £12 Om (last
year £1 0m) relates to the UK defined benefit section, £15 9m (last year £14 3m) to the UK defined contribution section and £4 2m (last
year £7 1m) to other retirement benefit schemes

A Pensions and other post-retirement habilities

2012 2011
£m £m
Total market value of assets o . L 6,1864 53981
“Present value of scheme habilities B } (6.0951)  (52155)
_Net funded pension plan asset _ o L o 913 1828
Unfunged retirement benefits ) - e i (0 @____(0?1
Post-retirement healthcare T (12 5 (13 2)
Net retirament benefit asset 780 168 5
“Analysed in the statement of financial position as T T T T
Retirement benefit asset _ o L B 813 1828
Retirement benefit deficit (13 3) (14 1)
780 168 5

B Fimancial assumptions

A full actuanal valuation of the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme was carned out at 31 March 2009 and showed a deficit of £1 3bn
A funding plan of £800m was agreed with the Trustees The difference between the valuation and the funding plan 15 expected to be
met by investment returns on the existing assets of the pension scheme The financial assumptions for the UK scheme and the most
recent actuanal valuations of the other post-retirement schemes have been updated by independent qualified actuares to take account
of the requirements of IAS 19 — 'Employee Benefits’ in order to assess the liabiibes of the schemes and are as follows

2012 2011

% %
Rate of ncrease in salanes | e , L 10 10
Rate of increase in pensiens i payment for service o 2 3-31 24-34
Discount rate i T T T e 46 55
inflation rate o L e . _ 31 34
[oﬁﬁnﬁﬂalthcare cost increases ) ) T - To7 T 74

The inflation rate of 3 1% reflects the Retall Price Index (RPi) rate In line with changes to legislatron certain benefits have been
calculated with reference to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) as the inflationary measure and in these instances a rate of 2 1% {last
year 2 7%) has been used Last year, the change from RPI to CPI for deferred revaluation was included in the results, resulting in a
gain of approximately £170m, taken as an actuanal gain on the obligation

The amount of the surplus vanes if the main financial assumptions change, particularly the discount rate If the discount rate
increased/decreased by 0 1% the IAS 19 surplus would increase/decrease by ¢ £110m (last year £90m) If the inflation rate increased
by 0 1%, the IAS 19 surplus would decrease by ¢ £75m and f the inflation rate decreased by 0 1%, the IAS 19 surplus would increase
by ¢ £65m

C Demographic assumptions

Apart from cash commutation and post retirement mortality, the demographic assumptions are in ine with those adopted for the last
formal actuanial valuation of the scheme performed as at 31 March 2009 The allowance for cash commutation reflects actual scheme
experience The post-retirement mortality assumptions are based on an analysis of the pensioner mortality trends under the scheme
for the penod to March 2009 updated to allow for anticipated longewity improvements over the subsequent years The specific mortality
rates used are based on the SAPS tables, adjusted to allow for the expenence of scheme pensioners The life expectancies underlying
the valuation are as follows
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Notes to the financial statements continued

10 Retirement benefits continued

2012 2011
years years
Current pensioners (at age 65) ———— . — U
- maes S 228 nm0
-~ females 23 4 234
Future pensioners (at age 65) o e o
- males —— R — - e _ 2 22
- females 243 243
An increase of one year in the life expectancies would decrease the IAS 19 surplus by ¢ £200m
D Analysis of assets and expected rates of return
The major categories of assets as a percentage of total plan assets are
2012 201 2012 2011
£m £m % %
Scottish Limited Partnership interest (see note 11} . 664 8 656 0 11 12
UK equittes L 2326 3033 4 6
Overseas equiies o 7774 8394 13 16
Government bonds B C T T T71,750 9 14469 28 27
Corporatebonds 14557 15314 23 28
Swaps' o 25y 482 4 A
Cash and other B 1,029 1 669 3 17 12
Total market value of assets 6,186 4 5,398 1 100 100
1 The swaps hedge interest and inflation rale exposures within the schemes' iabiliies
The expected long-term rates of return are
2012 2011
% %
Scottish Limited Partnership interest (seenote 11) o 35 46
UK equities o 18 b4
“Overseas equities T 78 84
Governmentbonds e 33 43
Corporate bonds T T T T T T 49 58
Swaps' o - T T T 33 41
Cash and other 33 41
Overall expected return 49 58

The overall expected return on assets assumption s derived as the weighted average of the expected returns from each of the main
asset classes The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of historical performance analysis, the forward-looking
views of financtal markets (as suggested by the yields available) and the views of investment organisations Censideration 1s also given
to the rate of return expecled to be available for reinvestment

At year end, the UK scheme indirectly held 107,216 {last year 122,362) ordinary shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc through its
tnvestment in an Aguila Life UK Equity Index Fund

E Analysis of amount charged agamnst profits

2012 2011
£m £m

Operating cost
Current service cost i o o o BBy 530
Curla:lm_ent_cbalgﬁ o B L 10 _ 10
One-off pension creaut—(_see noté_S)- T T T - (107)
577 493
Financecost . . _ L
Expecled return on plan assets (307 4) (323 1)
Interest on scheme habilities N . 288 235
Net finance income B S N ) (25 6) (37 6)
Total 321 117
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Notes to the financial statements continued

10 Retirement benefits continued

F Scheme assets
Changes In the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
_Fair value of scheme assets at start of year o _ 53981 4,9486
Expected return on scheme assets‘ T A_uu__ ) ﬁ_ L _ _ 3074 3231
Efnﬁlo—ye_r contrbutions T 1319 2598
Contnibutions from scheme members _ o o _ = ez
Benefits paid_ - ) (230 4) (256 3)
Actuarial gan 5810 1241
Exchange movement (16) (14}
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 6,186 4 5,398 1

1 The actual retwn on scheme assets was 888 4m (last year retumn of £447 2m)

Future contnibutions to the UK scheme will be made at the rate of 17 8% of pensionable salares up to the next full actuanal valuatron
The Group expects to contribute ¢ £35m to the UK defined benefit scheme for the year ended 30 March 2013 In addition to this, 2
further £32m (last year £35m) of cash contributtons were made in March 2012 per the funding plan agreed in May 2010

G Retrement benefit obligations

Changes in the present value of retirement benefit obhgations are as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Present value of obligation at start of year 5,2296 53151
_Current service cost e L 567 580
Curlallment charge L : . ___i______ B . 10 10
“One-off penston credit {see note 5) i - {107)
Interest cost L o S _ - 281 8 2855
Contnbutlons from : scheme members - o ) e - 02
“Benefits paid e (230 4) (256 3)
Actuarial loss/(gan) L . ) 7708 {161 9)
Exchange movement (12) 23
Present value of obhigation at end of year 6,108 4 52296
‘Analysed as o o - ) .
Present value of pensmn schem_e_ hablhtles T 6,095 1__ 52155
Unfunded pension plans T } T e 08 09
Post-retrement healthcare 125 132
Present value of obligation at end of year 6,108 4 52296
H Cumulative actuanal gains and losses recognised in equity
2012 2011
£m £m
_Loss at start of year o o _ . o (1,2229) (1,508 9)
“Net actuanal (Iosses)/gams recogmsed in the year {189 9) 2860
Loss at end of year (1,412 8) (1,222 9)
| History of experience gains and losses
2012 2011 2010 20009 2008
£m £ £€m £m £m
Expenence adjustments ansing on scheme assets o 5810 1241 8677 {1,280 3) __(4228)
—Expenence (losses)/gains ansing on scheme habilities (853} (8 4) 362 g12 _(61_5)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of scheme (685 6) 1703 (1,155 5) 2720 10895
Actuarial {losses)/gains recognised In equity (189 9} 2860 (251 6) (927 1) 605 4
_Farr value of scheme assets o L 6,186 4 o _5_398 1 45486 39770 50455
Present value of scheme habilites (6,0951)  {52155) (52986) (4,112 4) (4,542 3)
Pension scheme asset/(deficit) 913 1826 {350 0) {135 4) 503 2
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Notes to the financial statements continued

11 Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme interest in the Scotiish Limited Partnership

Marks and Spencer plc 1s a general partnerand the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme ts a limited partner of the Marks and
Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership As such, the partnership 1s consolidated into the results of the Group

The Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership holds £1 5bn of properties which have been leased back to Marks and Spencer
plc at market rates The Group retains contro! over these properties, including the flexibility to substitute alternative properties The
imited partnership interest (held by the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme) entitles the Pension Scheme to receive an annua!
distnbution of £71 9m from the profits of the Partnership earned from rental income, discrettonary at the instance of Marks and Spencer
ple

The discretionary right 1s exercisable If the Group does not pay a dividend or make any other form of return to its shareholders  This I1s
an equity instrument, disclosed within other reserves Since the Group has paid an interm dividend in relation to 2011/12, the
associated distribution of £71 9m 1s payable to the Pension Scheme and has been recognised as a hability (last year £71 9m), and 13
reflected as reduction in other reserves When such reserves are no longer sufficient, this distnbution will be charged to retained
earnings The future value of tota! discretionary scheduled payments s approximately £719m (last year £791m)

Under 1AS 19, the partnership interest of the Pension Scheme in the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership ts included within
the UK pension scheme assets, valued at £664 8m (last year £656 Om) For further detalls see note 10 The market value of this non-
quoted financial asset 15 measured based on the expected cash flows and benchmark asset-backed credit spreads

As general partner, Marks and Spencer plc has a night of pre-emption in respect of a transfer by the Pension Scheme of its himited
partnership interest to another party This allows the general partner to direct that, instead of transferring the Iimited partnership interest
to such a party, the general partner can instead nominate the transferee In addition, the partnership agreement includes a clause such
that, following a default event (Including the appointment of an admnistrator, iquidater, receiver or similar officer in respect of Marks
and Spencer plc or Marks and Spencer Group plc) or on a relevant change of law, the net present value of the outstanding
distributions becomes payable to the Pensicn Scheme by the Scethish Limited Partnership at the option of the Pension Scheme On the
basis of the expected cash flows associated with such an event, the related financial hability has been fair valued at £nil

On 21 May 2012 the terms of the Scothish Limited Partnership were ¢changed See note 28

12 Share-based payments

The charge for share-based payments for the year was £32 5m (last year £31 7m) Of the total share-based payments charge, £15 0m
{last year £11 4m) relates to the Save As You Earn Share Option scheme The remaming charge 1s spread over the other schemes
Further details of the option and share schemes that the Group operates are provided in the Remuneration report on pages 59 to 60 of
the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report

A Save As You Earn Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the scheme, the Board may offer options to purchase ordinary shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc once In
each financial year to those employees who enter into an HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) approved Save As You Earn (SAYE)
savings contract HMRC rules limit the maximum amount saved to £250 per month The price at which options may be offered 1s 80%
of the average mid-market price for three consecutive dealing days preceding the offer date The options may normally be exercised
during the six month period after the completion of the SAYE contract, etther three or five years after entering the scheme

2012 2014

Weighted Waighted

Number of average Number of average

oplions 6X8rcISe pnce options axercse price

Qutstanding at beginning of the year 54,295,921 249 9p 52,560,561 249 9p
Granted L _ . . 18,366,990 _ 2580p  B,162499 = 3190p
Exercised - (19,345,308)  2056p  (1,210.770) 324 7p
Forfeted ) N {4,327,447) 2856p (3,755,659) 266 4p
Expired {1,744,814) 481 8p (1.460,710) 530 6p
Outstanding at end of the year L ) 47245342 259 3p 54,295,921 _2498p
Exercisable at end of year T T T 2.803,103 2789p  2.150.364 446 6p

For SAYE share options exercised dunng the period, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 325 Op
(last year 366 3p)
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12 Share-based payments continued

The fair values of the options granted during the year have been calculated using the Black-Scholes model assuming the inputs shown
below

2012 2011
3-year plan 3-year plan
Grant date o e o ___ Novi11 = Nov10
Share pnce at grant date ) T 322p 399p
Exerciseppce 258p 319p
Option Iife In years L e dyears  3years
Risk-free rate ) i T T T T - 05% 15%
Expected volatiity }  314% 44 5%
aﬁated dividend yield ) o L i R L ) ) :_____ i :'_ 54%  40%
Farvaleofopon 67p 125p

Volatiity has been estimated by taking the histonc volatility in the Company's share pnce over a three year penod

The resulting fair value 1s expensed over the service penod of three years on the assumption that 15% of options will lapse over the
service period as employees leave the Group

Wanghted

average

remaining

Qutstanding options granted under the UK Employees’ SAYE Number ef contractual

Scheme are as follows apuons Iite (years)
Options granted 2012 2011 2012 2014 Option price
January 2006 . - 538403 o 02 349
Janwary2007 o __ _ _/583%81 630926 02 12 _ 5%
January 2008 655,213 2,178,087 12 09 517p
Janvary2009 15727797 35826844 te 20  203p
_January 2010 o o o 6349388 7,253,289 12 22  292p
January 2011 6,016,473 7,868,272 22 32 319p
January 2012 e _ trg12510 0 - 32 - 258p
47,245,342 54,295,921 23 22 259p

B Performance Share Plan*

The Performance Share Plan 1s the primary long-term incentive plan for approximately 100 of the most senior managers and was first
approved by shareholders in 2005 Under the plan, annual awards, based on a percentage of salary, may be offered The extent to

which the awards vest 1s based on adjusted (underlying basic) earnings per share growth over three years The value of any dividends
earned on the vested shares dunng the three years will also be paid on vesting Further details are set out in the Remuneration report
on page 59 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report Awards under this scheme have been made in each year since 2005

Dunng the year, 7,887,169 shares {last year 7,788,119} were awarded under the plan The weighted average far value of the shares
awarded was 350 8p (last year 342 2p)

C Deferred Share Bonus Plan®

The Deferred Share Bonus Plan was introduced in 2005/06 as part of the Annua! Bonus Scheme for approximately 450 of the most
senior managers As part of the scheme, the managers are required to defer a proportion of any bonus paid into shares which will be
held for three years There are no further performance conditions on these shares, other than continued employment, and the value of
any dividends earned during the deferred peniod will be paid on vesting

Dunng the year, 2,366,847 shares (last year 4,982,573) have been awarded under the Plan in relation to the annual bonus The fair
value of the shares awarded was 378 4p (last year 341 2p} As at 31 March 2012, 6,395,018 shares {last year 4,948,663) were
outstanding under the scheme

D Restrncted Share Plan*

The Restncted Share Plan was estabished in 2000 as part of the reward strategy for retention and recrutment of senior managers who
are wital to the success of the business The Plan operates for senior managers below executive director level Awards under the Plan
are made as part of ongoing reviews of reward packages, and for recruitment The shares are held in trust for a penod of between one
and three years, at which point they are released to the employee, subject to them still being 1n empioyment The value of any
dividends earned dunng the restncted peniod will also be paid at the time of vesting

Durng the year, 1,356,046 shares (last year §51,000) have been awarded under the Plan The weighted average fair value of the
shares awarded was 356 9p (last year 355 2p)
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12 Share-based payments continued

E Republic of Ireland Save As You Eam Scheme

Sharesave, the Company’s Save As You Earn Scheme was introduced in 2008 to all employees in the Republic of Ireland for a ten
year penod, after approval by shareholders at the 2009 AGM The scheme 15 subject to Insh Revenue rules which imit the maximum
monthly saving to €500 per month The Company chose tn 2009 to set a monthly savings cap of €320 per month to align the maximum
savings amount allowed within the UK scheme When the savings contract is started, options are granted to acquire the number of
shares that the total savings will buy when the contract matures, at a discounted pnce set atthe start of the scheme The price at which
the options may be offered is 80% of the average mid-market price for three consecutive days preceding the offer date Options cannot
nomally be exercised until a mimimum of three years has elapsed

Duning the year, 97,270 (last year 147,100) options were granted, at a fair value of 67 3p (last year 124 9p)

F Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust

The Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust {the Trust) holds 10,621,823 shares (last year 8,851,582} in Marks and Spencer
Group plc with a book value of £34 4m (last year £27 6m) and a market value of £40 2m (last year £29 8m) These shares were
acquired by the Trust in the market and are shown as a reduction In retained eamings In the consolidated statement of financial
positton The Trust used funds provided by the Company to meel the Group’s obligations Awards are granted to employees at the
discretion of the Company and shares awarded to employees by the Trust in accordance with the wishes of the Company under semor
executive share schemes Dividends are waived on all of these plans except for the Deferred Bonus Share Plan and Restricted Share
Plan where dividends are paid via a Dividend Reinvestment Plan for awards made in the form of forfeitable shares

26




Notes to the financial statements continued

13 Intangible assets

Computer
Computer software under
Goodwill Brands software development Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 3 Apnl 2010
Cost or valuation o L N 127 9 ___8c 2392 1200 8671
Accumulated amortisation - (293) {85 Q) - (114 3)
Net book value 127 9 507 164 2 1200 452 8
Year ended 2 Apnl 2011 . e
Opening net book valwe . . 1¥S_ 8507 1542 1200 4528
Additions - -~ 8314 431 126 6
—~  Transfers B _ L - - 1049  (1049) 0~
— Disposals e S (° 2 ) S (1<) 2
—  Amortsation charge T - {53) (45 7) - (51 0)
Exchange difference {03) - - - 03}
Closing net book value 127 6 454 296 5 58 2 527 7
At 2 Apnl 2011
Cost or valuation 1276 800 427 1 58 2 692 9
Accumulated amortisation - {34 6) {130 6) - (165 2)
Net book value 127 6 454 296 5 58 2 527 7
Year ended 31 March 2012 . o - e
Opening net book value B 1276 454 296 5 58 2 527 7
Additions o ) - 324 728 _ 529 1582
Transfers o T S i - - 370 (37 0) -
Disposals i B - = a0 - (10}
Impaiment -  (3449) - - =g
Amortisation charge i - B - (5 3) (60 0) = e53)
Exchange difference - ) - (0 6) - (03) - (09)
Closing net book value 926 725 3451 74 1 584 3
At 31 March 2012 o e
Cost h T 127 0 1124 535 4 741 848 9
Accumulated amartisation and impairment (34 4) {39 9) (190 3) - (264 6)
Net book value ) T 926 725 3451 741 584 3
Goodwill relates to the following business units
Marks and Marks and Supreme
Spencer Spencer Tradehnks
Marinopoulos Czech Private
per una Bv Republica s Limited Total
£m £m £m €m £m
Cost and net book value at 2 April 2011 B85 344 155 82 1276
Imparrment h T - @4y T T T LT T T masy
Exchange difference - - {0 1} (0 5) (0 8)
Cost and net book value at 31 March 2012 695 - 154 77 8926

Goodwill 1s not amorhised, but tested annually for mpairment with the recoverable amount being determined from value in use
calculations Gooedwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to groups of cash-generating units (CGUs) which include the
combined retail and wholesale businesses The key assumptions for the recoverable amount of all units are the long-term growth rate
and the discount rate The long-term growth rate used i1s purely for the impairment testing of goodwill under IAS 36 - ‘Impairment of
Assets’ and does not reflect long-term planning assumptions used by the Group for investment proposals or for any other
assessments The pre-tax discount rate 1s based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital, taking into account the cost of
capital and borrowings, to which specific market-related premium adjustments are made per una discount rate 10 6% (last year 9 9%),
Marks and Spencer Mannopoulos BV 16 2% (last year 17 7%), Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a s 12 3% (last year 11 9%) and
Supreme Tradelinks Private Limited 12 7% (last year 13 3%)

The valuations use cash flows based on detailed financial budgets prepared by management covering a three year penod Cash flows
beyond this three year period are extrapolated for Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a s at a growth rate of 1 5% (last year 2 0%)
and Supreme Tradelinks Private Limited at a growth rate of 1 5% (last year 2 0%} To stress test, nil growth has been assumed for per
una and Marks and Spencer Marinopoulos B V These rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the Group’s retail
husinesses

Based on the above assumptions and due to the current economic environment in Greece and neighbouring countries, the Marks and
Spencer Mannopoulos BV goodwill has been impaired in full giving nse to a charge of £34 4m This loss has been recogmised within
selling and administration expenses in the Incame statement No other goodwill impairment charges have been recognised in 2011/12
(last year £nil)
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13 Intangible assets continued

If a zero per cent growth rate 1s assumed or the discount rate 1s increased by a pre-tax rate of 2 0%, per una, Marks and Spencer

Czech Republic a s and Supreme Tradelinks Private Limited goodwill would not be impaired

Brands consist of the per una brand cost of £80 Om and the M&S Mode brands which were purchased on 2 May 2011 for £32 4m The
per una brand 1s a definite ife intangible asset and 1s amortised on a straight fine basis over a pened of 15 years and 1s only assessed
for impairment where such indicators exist The M&S Mode brands have been attributed an indefinite Iife as they give the Group the
future nght to use the ‘M&S’ brand across Europe This 1s consistent with the Group’s expansion plans in Europe and existing M&S
brand recognition from its current presence Similar to goodwill, the M&S Mode brands are assessed for impairment annually based on
their value in use The M&S Mode brands have been allocated for impairment testing across the European business No brand

impairment charge has been recognised in 2011/12

14 Property, plant and equipment

Assets In the
Land and  Fixlures fitings couisa of
budings and equipment construction Total
£m £€m £m £m
At 3 Apnl 2010
Cost = _ __ _ __ 25764 50439 @ 1212 77415
Accumulated depreciation (118 7) (2,800 8} - {3,019 5)
Net book value 24577 2,143 1 1212 47220
Yearended2Aprl 207 0 __ . ________  __ _ _ _
QOpening net book value 24577 21431 1212 47220
Addiens T T T T T 231 1731 168 8 3650
Transfers . _ . 224 667 @ -
Disposals o s (3 - __en
Asset write-offs o B - (34) - (3 4)
Depreciatton charge ) S (157) (4008 - {4165)
Exchange difference i o 21 - (22)
Closing net book value 2,486 0 1,975 3 2009 4,662 2
At 2 Apnl 2011

Cost -cT ST/ e T C 27300 5,263 2 200 9 8,194 1
‘Accumulated depreciaton T T T 7T (3440) (3,287 9) -~ (35319
Net book value 2,486 0 19753 2009 4,662 2
Year ended 31 March 2012 : o : e e .
‘Opening net book value T } 2,486 0 1,975 3 2009 4,662 2
Additions 17 1 2795 2827 5793
Transfers 253 127 9 (153 2) -
Disposals (0 8) (6 8) - (7 6
Asset write-offs e o (3. (04 - {234)
Depreciation charge o L (16 4) (3884) - (404 8)
Exchange difference {9 4) (6 1) {03) {15 8)
Closing net book value 2,488 8 1,871 0 3301 4,789 9
At 31 March 2012 L o _ o o
Cost T T 2,759 4 5612 9 330 1 8,702 4
Accumulated depreciation (270 6) (3,641 9) - (3,912 5)
Net book vatue 24888 1,971 0 3301 47889

The net book value above includes land and buildings of £43 6m (last year £44 3m) and equipment of £26 4m (last year £31 8m)

where the Group 15 a lessee under a finance lease

Addiions to property, plant and equipment dunng the year amounting to £6 Om (last year £n!l) were financed by new finance leases
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15 Other financial assets

2012 2011
£m £m
Non-current _ . . e
Unhsted investments o B e 3030
"Other investments' 402 298
432 328
Current . . _ o
Amounts owed by parent company 25417 25918
Short-term investments® L . B . 2544 2094
Unlisted investments 61 65
28022 28077

1 Cther investments are the shares in Marks and Spencer Group ple held for employee share schemss
2 Includes £17¢ 4m (last year £148 8m) and £49 2m (last year £44 2m) of money market deposits held by the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Pannership and Marks and Spencer
plc respectvely Al short term investments are measu’ed using Level 2 valuahion techriques

Non-current unhsted investments and other investments in Marks and Spencer Group plc are carned as avallable-for-sale assets
QOther financial assels are measured at fair value with changes n their value taken to the income statement

16 Trade and other receivables

2012 2011
£m £m

Non-current . e —— -
Other recewvables o o - L 338 352
Prepayments ‘and accrued income T T T 2364 2409
2702 2761
Cureent ) e L
Trade recelvables 1168 99 6
_kess Provision for impairment of recewables e {12y (13
Trade }ecetyables - net o 3 e 1146 98 3
Other recevables o T C 777 7239 255
Prepayments and accrued income 1145 126 5
2530 250 3

Trade recevables that were past due but not impaired amounted to £2 5m {last year £2 4m) and are mainly sterling denominated The
directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recelvables approximates therr fair value

17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are £196 1m (last year £470 2m) The carrying amount of these assets approximates their farr value
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits 1s 0 36% (last year 0 40%) These deposits have an average matunty of four

days (last year nine days)

18 Trade and other payables

2012 2011
£m Em
Current . _ _ _ o
Trade and othe?f)éyables e o 7 " "geBE 9192
Social security and other taxes e s 572
Accruals and deferred income i 3890 3712
1,449 1 1,347 6
Non-current = _ . . .
Other payables' o o 2808 2623
1 Includes the fair value of the put option over the 49% non-controling interest in the share capital of Marks and Spencer Czech Republic 8 s of Enil {last year £14 6m) exercisable on

4 April 2013 and the farr value of the put option over the 20% non-contrating interest In the share capitat of Marks and Spencer Greece S A of £nil exergisable in five or ten years

time
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19 Borrowings and other financial habilities

2012 2014
£m £m
Current
Bank loans and overdraﬂs 384 2748
6 3750/0 E308ITI medlum term l'lOteS 201 12 T T o - oo —-7 ’ 7371 571
5 875% £267m medlum {erm notes 2012 T - S ST ‘2é0'6 T -
Finance lease habilities 87 124
3277 6023
Non-current
Bankloans _ 03 143
5 875% £267m medwm-term notes 20122 - - 2802
'5 625% £400m medium-term notes 20142 T T T T T3 3997
62 250% US$500m medlum temﬂagte_s_mﬁ_” _ . 3178 3168
"6 125% £400m medium-term notes 20192 T T T T 7 4285 4047
'8 125% £300m medium-term notes 20212 T T T ote -
7 125% USS300m medium-term notes 203?3 189 94 189 3
B 875% £250m puttable callable reset medum-tem notes 20372~ "~ "7 770 7 o33 2532
Finance lease hiabiities 7 T T T 568 659
1,948 1 1,924 1
Total 2,275 8 2,526 4

Bank loans and overdratts includes a £5 Om {last year £5 0m) loan from the Hedge End Park Limited joint venture (see note 28)
These notes are 1ssued under Marks and Spencer pic s £3bn European medium term note programme and all pay interest annually
Interest on these bonds I1s payable semi-annually

These notes include an investor put and rssuer call option exercisable in December 2012

B AE A

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on the following page It 1s the Group's policy to
lease certain of its properties and equipment under finance leases The average lease term for equipment i1s five years (last year six
years) and 125 years (fast year 125 years) for property Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent payments The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured
by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

20 Financial instruments

Treasury policy

The Group operates a centralised treasury function to manage the Group's funding requirements and financial nsks in line with the
Board approved treasury policies and procedures, and their delegated authorities

The Group's financial instruments, other than denvatives, comprise borrowings, cash and iquid resources and vanous ifems, such as
trade receivables and trade payables, that anse directly from its operations The main purpose of these financial instruments 1s to
finrance the Group’s operations

The Group treasury function also enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate and currency swaps and forward currency
contracts The purpose of these transactions 1s to manage the interest rate and currency nsks arising from the Group's operations and
financing

It remains the Group's policy not to hold orissue finaneial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints
necessitate the need to liquidate any outstanding investments The treasury function 1s managed as a cost centre and does not engage
in speculative trading
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20 Financial instruments continued

Financial nsk management

The principal financial nsks faced by the Group are liquidity/funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty nsks The polictes
and strategies for managing these nisks are summansed on the following pages

(a) Liguidity/ffunding nsk
The nsk that the Group could be unable to seftle or meet its obhigations at a reasonable price as they fall due,

- The Group’s funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering flexibihty and cost effectiveness to match the requirements
of the Group

- Operating subsicianes are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and commutted
syndicated bank faciihes

At year end, the Group had a committed syndicated bank revolving credit facility of £1 325bn set to mature on 29 September 2016
This facility contains only one financial covenant being the ratio of earmings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents
payable, to interest plus rents payable The covenant i1s measured semi-annually The Group also has a number of undrawn
uncommitted facilities available to it At year end, these amounted to £105m (last year £105m), all of which are due to be reviewed
within a year At the balance sheet date a sterling equivalent of Enil {last year £nil) was drawn under the commitied facilihes and £nit
{tast year £nil) was drawn under the uncommutted facilities

In addition to the existing borrowings, the Group has a eurc medium-term note programme of £3bn, of which £1 6bn (last year £1 6bn)
was In Issuance as at the balance sheet date

The 6 375% £308m bond was repaid in November 2011 and a new 6 125% £300m bond was subsequently issued under the
programme in December 2011 maturing in 2021

The contractual matunty of the Group's non-denvative financial habilittes and derivatives 1s as follows

Bank loans Finance
and Syndicated  Medwm-term lease Danvative Dervatve
overdrafts  bank facility notes liabilives Total assets habilities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Timing of cash flows
Withinene year A (274 8) - {439 9) (160) (730 7y 13893 (1.4186) (29 3)
Between one and two years _(143) - (3801 (117} (4061) 965  (927) 38
Between two and five years - - {6509) (158) {6667) 1007 (103 7) (3 0)
More than five years - - {1,992 8) (195 8) (2,188 6) 8302 {883 4) {53 2)
o j (289 1) _ - _{34637)  (2393) (39921) 24167 (24984) (817
“Effect of dlscountlng and forelc:;n e_xcﬁa_nge - - 1,304 7 1610  1,4657
At 2 Apni 2011 (289 1) - {21590y (78 3) (2,528 4)
_Timing of cash flows _
Within one year (38 4) - (3985) {(118) (4487) 15401 (1,5294) 107
_Between one and two 0 years ) (0_3)_ = _ .17 (88) (5262 163 6 (161 9) 17
Betweentwoandfveyears = " _""(2838)  (92) (2930) _ 1105  (1033) 72
More than five years T - - (23109) (1921) (2,5030) 8046 {8418) (372}
(387) - (35103) (2219} (3,7709) 26188 (26364)  (176)

1,338,7 1564  1,4951
(2,171 86) (655) (22758)

Effect of dlscountlng and foreign exchange B -
At 31 March 2012 (38 7)

Tius table does not include trade and other payables (see note 18) due to the low associated hiquidity risk and the partnership habiity to
the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme {see note 11)

The present value of finance lease labilities 1s as follows

2012 2041
fm £m
Within one year 87) (12 4)
_Later than one year and not later than !‘ve years . o 77(8‘ 7 (17 3)
‘Later than five years T T T T o T @8 (48 6)
Total (65 5) (78 3)

{b) Counterparty nsk

Counterparty nsk exists where the Group can suffer financial loss through default or non-performance by financial institutions
Exposures are managed through Group treasury policy which imits the value that can be placed with each approved counterparty to
minimise the nsk of loss The counterparties are lmited to the approved institutions with secure long-term credit ratings A+/A1 or
better, assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively, unless approved by exception by the CFQ Limits are reviewed

regularly by senior management The credit nisk of these financial instruments 1s estimated as the fair value of the assets resulting from
the contracts
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20 Financial instruments continued

The table below analyses the Group's short-term investments and denvative assets by credit exposure excluding bank balances, store
cash and cash in transit

Credit rating of counterparty®

AAAM AAA AA AA- At A- A
£m £m £m £m £Em £m £m Total
_Short-term investments® ) _ 1931 170 54 3 _ 191 _ 791 = - 3626
Dernivative assets? T 7277 02z T os - 40 - 08  ss
At 2 April 2011 193 1 172 548 191 831 - 08 3681
AAAM AAA AA AA- A+ A Al
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m Total
Short-term investments® 188 5 - 20 428 271 200 - 290 4
Derwvative assets? - - 19 98 - 182 76 375
At 31 March 2012 1985 - 39 526 271 382 76 3279

Inctudes cash on deposit and money market funds held by Marks and Spencer Scotbish Limited Partnership Marks & Spencer pic and M S General Insurance LP

Excludes denvative asset opton which i1s embeadded within the £250m puttabls callable resat medium term notes due 2037 and the embedded derivative within the lease host
contract

Exposure to a counterparty approved as an exceplion 10 treasury policy

Standard & Poor 8 equivatent rating shown as referanca to the lowest credit rating of the countarparty from either Standard & Poor's or Moody's

[N

bW

The Group has very low retall credit risk due to transactions being principally of a high volume, low value and short matunty

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade receivables £115m (last year £98m), other
receivables £58m (last year £61m}, cash and cash equivalents £196m (last year £470m) and denivatives £111m (last year £40m)

{c) Foreign currency nsk

Transacticnal foreign currency exposures anse from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidianes, and from the
import of matenials and goods directly sourced from cverseas suppliers

Group treasury hedges these exposures principally using forward foretgn exchange contracts progressively covenng up to 100% out to
18 months Where appropnate, hedge cover ¢an be taken out longer than 18 months, with Board approval The Group 1s pnmartly
exposed to foreign exchange risk in relation to sterling against movements in US dollar and euro

Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the Group's forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with
farr value movements recognised directly in comprehensive income To the extent that these hedges cover actual currency payables or
receivables, then associated fair value movements previously recognised in comprehensive income are recorded in the income
statement in conjunction with the corresponding asset or klability As at the balance sheet date the gress notional value in sterling terms
of forward foreign exchange sell or buy contracts amounted to £1,221m (last year £1,062m} with a weighted average matunty date of
seven months {last year six months)

Gains and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 March 2012 will be released to the income statement at
various dates over the following 15 menths (last year 14 months) from the batance sheet date

The Group uses a combination of foreign currency debt and dervatives to hedge balance sheet translation exposures As at the
balance sheet date €242m (iast year €201m) and HK$291m (last year HK$192m) of derivatives was hedging overseas net assets

The Group also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the
hedging of the Group's foreign currency intercompany loans are designated as held for trading with fair value movements being
recogrised in the income statement The corresponding fair value movement of the intercompany loan balance results 1n an overall Emil
impact on the tncome statement As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value of intercompany loan hedges was £187m (last
year £175m)

After taking into account the hedging derivatives entered into by the Group, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Group's
financial labihties excluding short-term payables, the Liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme and the Marks and Spencer
Czech Republic as put option, 1s set out below

2012 2011

Fixed rale Floating rate Total Fixed rate Floatng rate Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Currency : S N
Stering T T 20304 2052 22356 2,030 1 4118 24419
Euro T T s T 51 T 119 71 337 408
Hong Kong doliar - - - - - -
Oother T T - 283 283 - 437 437
2,037 2 2386 22758 2,037 2 489 2 2,526 4
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20 Financial instruments continued

The floating rate sterling and euro borrowings are linked to interest rates related to LIBOR These rates are for periods between one
and three months

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of 5 8%
(last year 5 9%) and the weighted average time for which the rate is fixed 1s nine years (last year nine years)

(d} Interest rate risk

The Group s exposed to interest rate nsk in relation to sterling, US dollar, euro and Hong Kong dollar vanable rate financial assets and
habihities

The Group's policy 1s to use denvative contracts where necessary to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage
this nsk The structure and matunty of these derivatives correspond to the underlying borrowings and are accounted for as fair value or
cash flow hedges as appropnate

At the balance sheet date, fixed rate borrowings amounted to £2,037 2m (last year £2,037 2m) representing the public bond 1ssues and
finance leases, amounting to 80% (last year 81%) of the Group's gross borrowings

The effective interest rates at the halance sheet date were as follows

2012 2011
% %
Committed and uncommitted borrowings 05 -
_Medlum-term notes i o e ”__Qﬁ@ 59
Finance leases 45 46
Denvative financial instruments
2012 2011
Assals Liabilies Assets Liabilites
£m £m £m £m

Current
BWI’:IS_ - "= held for tradlngw o T 536 _{-_53_6)_" T 144 (1_4_5,_)
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cashflow hedges 133 5N 28 (29 9)
- 0 T I Theld for trading o1 _(_1 33)_——_ P Edf
- 7 T T 7T Tnetnvestment hedges 0 - (0 5) T Ten
Interest rate swaps —  held for trading - - - (13

670 {60 5) 184 (50 7)
Naon-current
Crosscurrency swaps - _cashflowhedges — L’y - 379
Forward foreign exchange contracts —  cash flow hedges 01 -(?J 7)_ 07 -
Interest rate swaps ) 772 T farvalue hedge B 240 - o8 -
Embedded derivative (see note 5} 201 - 203 -

a4 2 (27 2) 218 (37 5)

The amounts reported as options held for trading in denvatives assets and lrabilities represent the far value of the call option with the
puttable callable reset notes mirrored by the fair value of the sold option to have this call assigned The Group holds a number of
interest rate swaps to re-designate its sterling fixed debt to floating debt These are reported as fair value hedges The Group also
holds a number of cross currency swaps to re-designate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate sterling debt These are reported as
cash flow hedges
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20 Financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis

The table below illustrates the estimated impact on the iIncome statement and equity as a result of market movements in foreign
exchange and interest rates in relation to the Group's financial instruments The Directors consider that a 2% +/- (last year 2%)
movement In interest rates and a 20% +/- {last year 20%} weakening In sterling represents a reasonable possible change However
this analysis is for illustrative purposes only

The impact in the income statement due to changes in interest rates reflects the effect on the Group's floating rate debt as at the
balance sheet date The impact in equity reflects the fair value movement in relation to the Group's cross currency swaps

The impact from foreign exchange movements reflects the change in the farr value of the Group's transactional foreign exchange cash
flow hedges and the net investment hedges at the balance sheet date The equity impact shown for foreign exchange sensitivity relates
to derivative and non-derivative financial instruments hedging net investments This value is expected to be fully offset by the re-
translation of the hedged foreign currency net assets leaving a net equity impact of zero

The table excludes financial instruments that expose the Group to interest rate and foreign exchange nsk where such risk is fully
hedged with another financial instrument Also excluded are trade receivables and payables as these are either sterling denominated
or the foretgn exchange rnisk i1s hedged

2% decrease 2% \ncrease 20% 20%
In nterest In intarest weakemng strengthening
rates rates In sterling In sterling

£m Em £m
At2Apod201t . . e
Impact on income statement gain/{loss) G5 22 (28 24
Impact on other comprehensive ncome (lossd/gain (87) 64 44 3 (29 5)
At31March 2012 =~ i
Impact on income statement gain 156 08 - -
Impact on other comprehensive income (loss)/gain (53) 30 702 {46 8)

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial mstruments by valuation technigue

—  Level 1 guoted (unadjusted) pnces in active markets for identical assets or habilities,

—  Level 2 other techriques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly, and

- Level 3 techmques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on cbservable
market data Unlisted equity investments are included in Level 3 The fair value of embedded derivatives is determined using the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on financial forecasts The nature of the valuation techniques and the
Jjudgement around the Inputs mean that a change in assumptions could result in significant change in the fair value of the
instrument

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at farr value

2012 201
tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value } L L -
Financial assets at far value through -
profit and loss
=" Trading dervatives T Tl 537 - 537 - 1586 - 156
Derwvatives usedforhedging ___ - _ 374 - 374 - 43 - 43
_Embedded denvatives (note 5) . - - 21 201 - - 203 203
Available-for-sale financial assets
= equity securities _ 402 = 30 30 298 - 30 30
‘Liabiities measured at fair value T
Financial habilihes at fair value through
profit and loss
—  Trading denvatives - (54 9) = (549 - {18 1} - (18 1)
"Derivative used for hedging - (328 - (328 - (70 1) - (70 1)
Put o?am;n ng;ﬁon-co;tr_olhng inferest - - - - - — {14 6) (14 6)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 far value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 farr value
measurements in the current or prior years
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20 Financial instruments continued

The following table presents the changes i Level 3 instruments

2012 2041

£m £m
Opemng balance - X {60 5)
Additions (see note 5) T - i - 203
Gains and losses recognised in the income statement 14 4 489
Closing balance 231 87

The gains recogrised in the income statement relate to the valuation of the put option over a non-controling interest and the valuation
of the embedded derivative In a lease contract A discount unwind on the put option of £1 Om (last year £5 4m) has been recorded
within underlying interest charges, with the fair value movement of the put option of £15 6m (last year £54 3m) and the fair value
movement of the embedded dernvative of £0 2m treated as adjustment to reported profit (see note 5)

Fair value of financial instruments

With the exception of the Group's fixed rate bond debt, there were no matenal differences between the carrymg value of non-denvative
financial assets and financial habilites and their fair values as at the balance sheet date

The carrying value of the Group’s fixed rate bond debt was £2,171 6m (last year £2,159 Om), the fair value of this debt was £2,121 7m
(last year £2 080 1m}

Capital policy

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide optimal
returns for shareholders and to mamtan an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In doing so the Group’s strategy 1s to maintain a capital structure commensurate with an investment grade credit rating and to retain
appropniate levels of liguidity headroom to ensure financial stability and flexibility To achieve this strategy the Group regularly monitors
key credit metrics such as the gearing ratio, cash flow to net debt (see note 26) and fixed charge cover to maintain this positron In
addition, the Group ensures a combination of appropriate committed short-term hquidity headroom with a diverse and balanced long-
term debt matunty profile As at the balance sheet date the Group’s average debt matunty profile was nine years (last year nine years)
Dunng the year Marks and Spencer Group plc maintained an investment grade credit rating of Baa3 (stable) with Moody's and BBB-
{stable) with Standard & Poor's

In erder to marntain or reahgn the capital structure, the Group may adjust the number of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

21 Provisions

2012 2011
£m £m
At start of year 447 511
Provided in the year . o o o ) 78 108
Released in the year R o o o v_ i m—'_ o (34} a 11—7-)
Utihsed during the year T '—(16 5} o —(1—55,)
Exchange differences 0 2) {01)
At end of year 324 447
Analysis of provisions
Curremt o o e i 84 227
Non-current 24 0 220
Total provisions 324 447

The provisions primarldy comprse one-off strategic programme costs associated with the Focus on the UK plans as weli as onerous
lease provisions relating to the 2008/09 UK restructuring

The current element of the proviston primarily relates to onerous leases, redundancies and strategic costs

The non-current element of the provisian relates to store closures, primarily onerous leases, and 1s expected to be utilsed over a
period of ten years
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22 Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided under the balance sheet hability method using a tax rate of 24% (last year 26%) for UK differences and local
tax rates for overseas differences Details of the changes to the UK corporation tax rate and the impact on the Group are described in
note 7

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (after offsetting balances within the same junsdiction as permitted by IAS 12 -
‘Income Taxes') duning the year are shown below

Deferred tax (labilities)/assets

Non-current Other Total
assets  Accelerated Pension shont-term UK Qverseas
temparary capital lemporary temporary deferred deferred
differences allowances differences differencas tax tax Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Atdhdpni2010 {743) (123 7) 812 32) (12000 _ (58) (1258)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 105 189 30 71 5 (32 3683
{Charged)/credited to equity - - (112 0y 61 (105 9) (11) (107 O)
AL 2 April 2011 (63 8) (104 8) {27 8} 100 (186 4) {10 1) {196 5)
At3Apni2011 - _ (638) (1048  (278) 100 (1864)  (101) (196 5)
_Credited/(charged) to the income statement 58 42 44 {29 13 (15 _. 98
{Charged)/credited to equity . - - (51) {0 6) (57) 33 (8 0)
At 31 March 2012 (58 2) (100 6} (28 5) 65 {180 8} (14 9) (185 7)

The deferred tax liability on non-current assets 1s stated net of the benefit of capital losses with a tax value of £71 4m (last year
£65 Om} No benefit has been recogntsed in respect of unexpired trading losses carmed forward in overseas jurisdictions with a tax
value of £26 8m (last year £16 1m)

In addition, the Group 15 claiming UK tax relief for losses incurred by some of its current and former European subsidianes In light of
the continuing litigation no asset has been recognised in respect of these clams

No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of undistnbuted earnings of overseas subsidiantes and joint ventures, as no material
hatnity 1s expected to anse on distnbution of these earnings under applicable tax legislation

23 Ordinary share capital

2012 2011

Shares £m Shares £m

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each 2,850,039 477 7125 2 850,039,477 7125
24 Contingencies and commitments

A Capital commitments

2012 2011

£m £m

Commitments In respect of properties in the course of construction 714 808

in respect of its interest in a Joint venture, the Group 1s committed to incur capital expenditure of £ni (last year £0 5m)
B Other matenal contracts

In the event of a matenial change in the trading arrangements with certain warehouse operators, the Group has a commitment to
purchase property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book value to market value, which are currently owned
and operated by the warehouse operators on the Group's behalf

See note 11 for details on the partnership arrangement with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

36




Notes to the financial statements continued

24 Contingencies and commitments continued

C Commitments under operaling leases

The Group leases vanous stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal nights

2012 2011
m £m
Total future mimimum rentais payabte under non-cancellable operatlng Ieases are
7\};Iith|n one year ) B "7_:7 B ‘__ 2578 _ ?_4_2 6
Later than one year and not \ater than five years T B 9974 9230
_Later than five years and not later than ten years . L e 1,028 5 9908
“Later than ten years and not later than 15 years ) o 727 767 4
Later than 15 years and not later than 20years o 3851 4029
Later than 20 years and not later than 25 years o ___ 2593 2431
‘Later than 25 years 1,210 1 1,210 3
Total 49119 4,780 1
The total future sublease payments to be received are £63 3m (last year £65 8m)
25 Analysis of cash flows given in the statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities
2012 2011
Em £m
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation o _ . 489 6 598 6
Income tax expense | N 1684 1820
_Finance costs o e 1368 1529
Fmancgg&ome . i o L T _mm“ (48 3)ﬁ (96 6)
Operating profit - T 7465 8369
_Increase in nventories . B e L (@ 1) (72 1)
(Increase)fdecrease in recewvables i _—: AA_ N o —i- ) _ _:_ T (7 1)_ h 29
_ngr}w;nﬁ to acquire Ieaseholdiﬁrgpemes B S S N T (12) T {1 4)-
Increase in payables L . o o o ) 7W'105f4 1752
Nan- underlymg operatlng cash outflows a . o ) . T (22 9) - _(—1 2-3)
Depreciation, amortisation and asset twnte-ots T T 4797 4875
Share-based payments o i 325 N7
Pension costs charged agamnst operating profit T T T T T 577 800
Cash contributions to pension schemes T T T T ST o _ {89 9)“—“ {91 2)
Non-underlying operating profit tems (see note 5) 635 (120)
Cash generated from operations 1,352 1 1,385 2

Non-underlying operating cash outflows pnmarnly relate to the utiisation of the provisions for UK restructuring and strategic programme
costs
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26 Analysts of net debt
A Reconciliation of movement in net debt
At Exchange and Al
3 April other non-cash 31 March
201 Cash fiow moveéments 2012
£m £m £m Em
Net cash
Bank loans, overdrafts and syndicated bank facility (note 19) o _ {289 1) 2478 26 (387)
Less amounts treated as financing {see below}) T S 824 7”(4174) (2 6)“_ T 384
(206 7) 206 4 - 03
Cash and cash equivalents (note 17) 4702 (272 2) (19) 196 1
Net cash per statement of cash flows 2835 (65 8) (19) 195 8
Current financial assets (see note 15) 28077 (53) (02) 28022
Debt financing _
Bank loans and gvgrdrafts treated as fnancmg (see above) T T 7(52 Z)m T 4 T2 6—— B T& :t_)_
Medum-term notes T ity 121 (20)  (2,1376)
Finance lease liabilities (note 19) 783y 130 (0 2) (65 5)
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (note 11) 719 79 719 (119)
Debt financing {2,380 3) 1384 {71 5) {2,313 4)
Net debt {690 9) 673 (73 6} 684 6
B Reconcihation of net debt to statement of financial position
2012 2011
Em £m
Statement of finanoial position and related notes
Cash and cash equivalents L 196 1 470 2
Current fi fnanclalgsslets_(note 1,5)_ T e Trrm e o 2502 2 _—2505 7
Bank loans and overd-r'aftsﬁo_té-@) -0/t T ) _(-38 7)- (289 1)
Medium-term notes - net of hedging dervatives e . . {Rasiy (2,194 0)
flnincq lease habilities (note 19) o T T (85 5) (78 3}
Padne-rsh_ip llégﬁli;!mtajtﬁwg Marks & Spaﬁgér UK Pension Scheme note 11) y T T _—(:M_Q) (717 §)
e 3 L B404 6446
Interest payable included within related borf—owmg o T T T a7 46 3
Total net debt 684 6 690 9

27 Related party transactions

A Parent company and Subsidianes

Duning the year, the Company paid dividends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group plc, of £273 6m (last year £250 8m)
and decreased 1ts loan to its parent company by £50 1m (last year decrease of £11 7Tm)

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliiminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are disclosed in the Company's separate financial
statements

On 30 March 2012 the Group acquired the remaining 50 per cent shareholding of Marks & Spencer Mannopoulos BV for €1, taking its
share in the Balkan states (Greece, Romania, Croatia, Slovenia, Bulgana, Serbia, and Mentenegro) to 100 per cent

At the same time, the Group sold 20 per cent of the share capital of Marks & Spencer Greece SA ('Greece’) to Mannopolous Holding
Sar for €1, leaving the Group's effective share in Greece at 80 per cent The sale and purchase agreement includes call and put
options over this 20 per cent of the share capital of Greece, exercisable in five or ten years time The fair value of the put option at 31
March 2012 was £nil On an undiscounted basis this habilily has a value of £nil

Both of these transactions have been accounted for through equity, as the Group already controlled these entities and consolidated
them as subsidianes

B Hedge End joint venture

A loan of £5 Om was recewved from the joint venture on 9 October 2002 It is repayable on five busingss days’ nolice and was renewed
on 1 January 2012 Interest was charged on the loan at 2 0% untit 31 December 2009 and 0 5% thereafter

38




Notes to the financial statements continued

27 Related party transactions continued

C Lima (Bradford) joint venture

A loan facility was provided to the joint venture on 11 August 2008 At 31 March 2012, £25 4m (last year £25 4m) was drawn down on
this facility Interest was charged on the loan at 1 1% above 3-month LIBOR The Group has entered into a rental agreement with the
joint venture and £4 5m (last year £4 5m) of rental charges were incurred There was no outstanding balance at March 2012

D Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Details of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme are set out in notes 10 and 11
E Key management compensation

2042 201

£m £m

Salanes and short-term benefits 46 72
Share-based payments 39 50
Total 85 122

Key management compnses Board directors only Further information about the remuneration of individual directors 1s provided in the
Remuneration report in the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annuai Report During the year, key management have purchased goods at
the Group's usual prices less a 20% discount This discount 1s available to all staff employed directly by the Group in the UK

F Other related party transactions

Supplier transactions accurred during the year between the Group and a company controlled by a close family member of Kate
Bostock, an executive director of Marks and Spencer Group plc These transactions amounted to £12 7m duning the year (last year
£9 3m) with an outstanding trade payable of £1 3m at 31 March 2012 (last year £0 8m) The company was a supplier prior to Kate's
employment by the Group

Supplier transactions occurred during the year between the Group and a company controlled by Martha Lane Fox's partner Martha is
a non-executive director of Marks and Spencer Group plc These transactions amounted to £1 9m dunng the year (last year £1 7m)
with an outstanding trade payable of £0 5m at 31 March 2012 (last year £0 8m)

28 Events after the reporting pericd

On 21 May 2012 the Group changed the terms of the Scottish Limited Partnership (the Partnership) to waive the Group’s limited
discretionary nght over the annual distnbutions from the Partnership to the Pension Trustee These discretionary nights were agreed
with our Trustee in 2009, the time of the last tnennial valuation This change will not have any impact on the cash flows of the Group

From 21 May 2012 this will result in & prospective change in the Group's accounting treatment The change will reflect the de-
recognition of the related equity instrument and recognition of a financial labibty The habihity will intially be measured at fair value,
representing the present value of the remaining ten years of distnbutions of £71 9m per annum The difference between the value of
the derecognised equity instrument and the fair value of the hability will be recognised in equity, In accordance with IAS 32

As a result of the change, the Group’s reported net debt will include this liabilty, which at the end of financial year 2012/13 will have a
value of £537m and the Group's interest charge will increase to reflect the unwinding of the discount on the habihty which, in financial
year 2012/13, will be a charge of £17m Similarly the impact on the Group's net assets will be to reduce them by £551m The Group's
obhgations to the Pension Trustee remain unchanged and this will not have any matena! impact on the Group's credit rating

In March 2009, conscious of the Group’s obligations to the Pension Trustee and the Partnership (which 1s a partnership between the
Group and the Pension Trustee which holds a number of properties from which the Group trades and on which the Group pays rent to
the Partnership), we amended the terms of the Partnership to reflect a discretignary nght agreed between the Group and the Trustee
This nght 1s such that in the circumstances when no ordinary dividend or other distribution 1s made to Marks and Spencer Group plc
ordinary shareholders, the annual distribution of £71 9m from the Partnership to the Pension Trustee would not be obliged to be made
The impact of this change was to reclassify £572m from debt to equity in March 2009, and to reduce the Group's interest charge by
£33m in the financial year 2005/10 The Audit Committee and the Board has consistently received accounting and legal advice
supporting this accounting treatment There was no impact on the Group’s ullimate obligation to the Pension Trustee and no impact on
cash flows

Following the publication of the 2009 Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report and Accounts, in February 2010 the Financial
Reporting Review Panel (FRRP) wrote to the company in relatron to the change in accounting treatment of the obligaticn to the
Pension Trustee In the dialogue that followed, and has continued until the present time, the FRRP expressed a concern that in the
circumstances of the Group's pension arrangement this discretion was not sufficient to support classificaticn of the Partnership interest
as a compeonent of equity

In the interest of bnnging discussions with the FRRP to a close and given that Marks and Spencer Group plc has a stated dividend
policy and the Board continues to expect that future dividend payments and resulting Partnership distnbutions will be made, the Group
has decided that 1t will reflect the obligation as a hability, and n order to achieve this will indefinitely waive its discretionary nght As
before, there 1s no change in the Group's ullimate obligation to the Pension Trustee The FRRP has confirmed that this change, with
the consequent accounting treatment, effective from 21 May 2012, will bring its discussions with the Group to a close
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Company statement of comprehensive iIncome

52 weeks ended

52 weeks ended

31 March 2012 2 April 2011
(restated}

Notes £m £m

Profit for the year 514 5 299 3
_athe[mgnjprehglswe income B B _m:
Actuareal {losses)/gains on retirement benefit schemes (128 4) 264 1
Tax on retirement benefit schemes __ _ ®s5__ @e)
Fair value movement on avallable-for-sale assets . {2 8) (9 3}
Cash flow and net mvestmenth_edgs S }
—  farr value movements in equity 243 {27 7}
— reclassified and repo_rt_éa In net profit B (16 9) 268
—  amount recngms?d in inventeries BEEX: 36
Tax on cash flow hedges and net investment hedges (4 6) 13
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax {82 9) 187 0
Total comprehensive tncome for the year 4316 486 3

The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year 1s £514 5m (last year £2939 3my)
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Company statement of financial position

As at As at
3t March 2012 2 Apr 2011
(restated)
Nates £m £m
Assets
Non-curreptasgets L L o
Intangible assets o . cs 4165 _3§_1__8
‘Property, plant and equipment 7 c7? 3,0154 2,843 3
Investments in group undertakmgs o o es 12624 12691
Investment i joint ventures _ i . ___1s 105
“Other financial assets [or:] 432 328
Retrement beneftasget . C3 4652 4784
Trade and other recevables B o 144 5 1481
Denvative financial instruments C14 44 2 218
54019 51558
:(“:Wurrent assets e o . o _ o
Inventones o ) N - 1 Y4 616 0
"Other financial assets - ce 49 2 44 2
Trade and other receivables e L0 32952 32810
Denvative financial nstruments o _ . G &84 324
‘Cash and cash equivalents 119 8 2215
4,144 3 41951
Total assets 9,546 2 9,350 9
Liabiities
_Current labilities _ L e o
“Trade and other payables _ k2 28194 276757@ 9
Borrowmg—s_arﬁ other financial liabilities c13 204 6 539 3
Derivative financial instruments B e 703 515
_Provisions T ﬁ_j ) e 5 1 221
"Current tax iabilities 480 68 3
32374 3,340 1
_Non-current habihtres ) _ o R o
Retrement benefit deficit c3 o126 135
Tradeand otherpayables ~  ~ - U T T c1z_ 3883 3303
Borrowings and other financial habilties o o L3 19491 19027
‘Derwative financial instruments _ e c14 272 375
Provisions o o ) ) 15 200 17 7
Deferred tax habihties C16 167 4 1516
25566 2,453 3
Total habilities _ 57940 5,793 4
Net assets 3,752 2 35575
Equity
Issued share capital _ o N o7 7126 7125
Share premium account o o . _ 381 3861
-C:'afmal redeFlEtlo_n_re;;rve 80 80
_Hedging reserve o o o 121 {27
Retained earnings 26335 2 453 6
Total shareholders’ equity 3,7522 3,557 5

The financial staternents were approved by the Board and authonsed for 1ssue on 5 September 2012
The financial statements also compnse the notes on pages 44 to 60

Alan Stewart Chief Finance Officer

c

Registered number
00214436
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Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Ordinar Share Capital

yshare  premum redemphg Hedgng  Retaned

caplal  account nreserve feserve  98MTNGS Tatal

£m £m £m £m £m £m

At 4 April 2010 7125 386 1 80 (67) 21905 32904
Profit for the year - - - - 2953 2993
Other comprehensive mcome - . - o
Actuarlal gamns on retirement beneﬂ schemes - - - - 2641 2641
Tax on retrrement benefit schemes - - . - {71 8) (71 B)
Fair value mavement in equity on available-for-sale - - - - {(93) {93)
Cash flow and net |nvestment hedgésﬁ_ o T T T T T
—  fair value movements o T T_(Z?T R _(2_7-7)_
—  reclassified and reported in net profit - - - 268 - 268
- amount recognised In nventories R T _‘ ég
Tax on cégh—%w_héageé_éﬁd net - T
investment hedges - - - 13 - 13
Other cormprehensive income - - - 40 1830 1870
Total comprehensive income - - - 40 482 3 486 3
Transactlons with OWners
Dwndends - - - - (250 8) (250 8)
_Creth for _share based paymen[s—_ T - - - - 35 ) Cﬁ‘{
Deferred tax on share schemes T T T T T T T T e 01
At 2 April 2011 (restated) 7125 3861 80 (27) 24536 35575
At 3 Apri 2011 (restated) 7125 3861 80 (27) 24536 3.,8575
Profit for the year T o o - = 5145 514 5
Other comprehensive income _ o
Actuanal losses on retirement benefit schemes T LT T T T ey (128 4y
Tax on retirement benefit schemes D T X
Far value movementin equity on avaitable- for sale - - - - (28) (2 8)
Casﬁ flow and net iInvestment hédéés i ’
-~ farvalue movements = - - 243 - 243
— reclassified and reported in net profit - - - (18 9) - (16 %)
— amount recognised in inventories . o120 0 T - T 20
Tax on cash flow hedges andmet 7T T 7T T Twe 0 - @8
Other comprehensive ncome - - - 148 97 7) (829
Total comprehensive income - - - 1438 416 8 4316
Transactions with owners
Dwdends N - = == (2738 (2736}
Credl_t_for_ﬁre based payments T T . i - - 324 o3z 4
Deferred tax on share schemes o T T o - - 43 43
At 31 March 2012 7125 3861 B0 121 2,6335 3,752 2
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Company statement of cash flows

52 woeks ended 52 weoks ended

31 March 2012 2 Apnl 2011
Notes tm £m
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations c19 _ 12821 11114
Income tax paid {136 9} (175 7)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,1552 9357
Cash flows from investing activities e L o
Purchase of property._plznlgr;d equr;ﬁm?e; T - (530 5) (301 7)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . L ) - 34
Purchase of intangible assets o (1252) {125 4)
T—"?urchasé of current financial assets o (50 {44 2)
Interest rece‘_lve-d_ ) ) 09 06
Net cash used 1n investing activities {659 8) {467 3)
Cash flows from financing activities . L _
_Tn‘te_re_sﬁ paid w:" e _ (1291) (1347)
Repayment of syndicated bank facility - (217 5)
Issue of medwum-term notes e 2855 -
Redemption of medium-term notes (307 6) -
Monetisation of denvative assets N - 73 -
“Decrease ;r_la)hg‘atl_m_s under finance leases o e 127y (153
‘Movement in intercompany loans treated as financing _ 501 218 8
‘Equity dividends paid {273 8) (250 8)
Net purchase of shares in parent company held in employee trust (132) (12 0)
Net cash used in financing activities (390 6) (378 7)
Net cash inflow from activities o _ 1048 897
_Oba'ﬁng—net cash 147 (75 0)
Closing net cash cn 1195 147
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1 Accouhhng policies

The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set out In note 1 of the Group financial statements, except as noted below
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment

Loans from other Group undertakings and all other payables are inhally recorded at far value, which is generally the proceeds
received They are then subsequently carried at amortised cost

The Company's financial risk is managed as part of the Group’s strategy and policies as discussed in note 20 of the Group financial
statements

In accordance with the exemption allowed by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented is own income
statement

Restatement of 2011 financia! information

The balance sheef as at 2 April 2011 has been restated in respect of an adjustment to deferred tax on retirement benefits schemes,
resulting m a reclassification of £80 3m between retained earnings and deferred tax habilittes This adjustment has no impact on the
income statement for the year ended 2 Apnl 2011

C2 Dividends
2012 2011 2012 2011
per share per share £m £m
Dividends on equity ordinary shares
‘Pad finat dwdend - 7777777 g4 7 s3p 1739 1510
‘Pad nterm dvidend 77 "7 38p  35p ‘897 998
9 6p 8 8p 2736 250 8

In addition, the directors have proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2012 of 10 8p per share amounting to a
dmidend of £173 Sm

C3 Retirement benefits

The Company provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
This has a defined benefit section, which was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 Apnl 2002, and a defined contribution section
which has been open to new members with effect from 1 Apnl 2003

The defined benefit section operates on a final salary basis and at the year end had some 14,000 active members (last year 15,000),
56,000 deferred members (last year 56,000) and 51,000 pensioners (last year 51,000} At the year end, the defined contribution
section had some 9,000 active members (last year 9,000) and some 2,000 deferred members (last year 2,000)

Retirement benefits also include a UK post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded retirement benefits

Within the total retirement benefit cost of £12 4m (last year £0 5m income), £6 5m income (last year £15 1m income) relates to the UK
defined benefit section, £18 2m (last year £13 8m costs) to the UK defined contribution section and £0 7m (last year £0 8rn costs) to
other retirement benefit schemes

A Pensions and other post-retirerment habilities

2012 2011

fm £m

Total market value of assets 6,503 2 56414
Present value of scheme habilities (6,038 0) (5183 0)
_Net funded pension plan asset o _ - — 4852 4784
Unfunded retirement benefits - (01) 03).
Post-retrement heaithcare (12 5) (132)
Net retirement benefit asset 452 6 464 9

Analysed in the statement of financial position as

Retirement benefit asset 465 2 478 4
Retirement benefit deficit {12 6) (13 5)
452 6 464 9
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C3 Retirement benefits continued

B Financial assumptions

A full actuanal valuation of the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme was carned out at 31 March 2009 and showed a deficit of £1 3bn
A funding plan of £800m was agreed with the Trustees The difference between the valuation and the funding plan i1s expected to be
met by investment returns on the existing assets of the pension scheme The financial assumptions for the UK scheme and the most
recent actuanal valuations of the other post-retirement schemes have been updated by independent qualified actuares to take account
of the requirements of IAS 19 — ‘Employee Benefits' in order to assess the liabilities of the schemes and are as follows

2012 2011
% %

Rate of ncrease n salanes - e e 10 10

Rate of mcrease n pensions in payment for service 2331 24-34

Discountrate L o _ . AB__ 55

viﬂﬂatlorTrate . _ . 3v_ 34
—Long_—term healthcare cost mcreases 71 74

The inflation rate of 3 1% reflects the Retail Price Index (RPI) rate In line with changes to legislation certain benefits have been
calculated with reference to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) as the inflationary measure and in these nstances a rate of 2 1% (last
year 2 7%) has been used Last year, the change from RPI to CPI for deferred revaluation was included in the results, resulting in a
gain of approximately £170m, taken as an actuaral gain on the obligalion

The amount of the surplus vanes if the main financial assumptions change, particularly the discount rate If the discount rate
increased/decreased by 0 1% the IAS 19 surplus would increase/decrease by ¢ £110m (last year £90m) If the inflation rate increased
by 0 1%, the IAS 19 surplus would decrease by ¢ £75m and if the inflation rate decreased by 0 1%, the IAS 19 surplus would increase
by c £65m

C Demographic assumptions

Apart from cash commutation and post retrement mortality, the demographic assumptions are in Iine with those adopted for the last
formal actuanal valuation of the scheme performed as at 31 March 2009 The allowance for cash commutation reflects actual scheme
expenence The post-retirement mortality assumptions are based on an analysis of the pensioner mortahty trends under the scheme
for the penod to March 2009 updated to allow for anticipated longevity improvements over the subsequent years The specific mortality
rates used are based on the SAPS tables, adjusted to allow for the expenence of scheme pensioners The life expectancites underlying
the valuation are as follows

2012 2011
years years
Current pensioners (atage 65) = _ _ _ ___ U

- males__________ ) o o . o 221 220

- females 234 234
Future pensioners (atage 65) e ) _
= males o e 232 232

- females 243 243

An increase of one year in the life expectancies would decrease the IAS 19 surplus by ¢ £200m
D Analysis of assets and expected rates of retumn
The major categones of assets as a percentage of total plan assets are

2012 2011 2012 201

£m £m % %

Scottish Limited Partnership interest (see note C4) 1,048 0 963 5 16 17
Ukequtes T ‘ T 2326 3033 4 s
Overseas equites o T 7319 7926 1m 14
Govemment bonds S - T 17509 14469 27 T o8
Corporate bonds e 1,4557 15314 22 27
Swapst L C 259 482 a )
Cash and other T T 1,008 2 “(-S_E,TQ_ 6 ﬁ-12-
Total market value of assets 6,503 2 5,641 4 100 100

1 Tha swaps hedge interest and inflation rate exposures within the schemes habilities
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C3 Retirement benefits continued

The expected long-term rates of return are

2012 2011
% %
Scottish Limited Partnership interest (see note C4) B 35 46
UK equties B 78 84
Overseas equities o 78 84
Government bonds . 33 43
Corporate bonds e T T _ S 49 58
Swaps T ) o T 33 41
Cash and other 33 41
Overall expected return 49 58

The overall expected return on assets assumphon i1s denved as the weighted average of the expected returns from each of the main
asset classes The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of historical performance analysis, the forward-looking
views of financial markets (as suggested by the yields avallable) and the views of investment organisations Consideration s also given

to the rate of return expected to be available for reinvestment

At year end, the UK scheme indirectly held 107,216 (last year 122,362} ordinary shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc through its

investment in an Aquila Life UK Equity index Fund

E Analysis of amount charged against profits

2092 2011
£m £m

Operating cost
Current service cost S o - & 518
Curtailment charge 10 10

55 1 52 8
Fuinancecost e R
Expected return on plan assets i ) e (3214 @Iz
Interest on scheme liabilities 2787 2818
Net finance income {42 7) (533)
Total 124 {0 5)
F Scheme assets
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

Fair value of scheme assets at start of year 5,641 4 48879
Expected return on scheme assets’ 314 3351
Employer contributions . B4 5533
Contnbutions from scheme members - 02
Benefits paid (229 4) (252 3)
Actuanal gamn 6414 117 2
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 6,503 2 5,641 4

1 The actual return on scheme assets was £944 4m (last year retum of £452 3m)

Future contributions to the UK scheme will be made at the rate of 17 9% of pensionable salaries up to the next full actuanal valuation The
Group expects to contribute ¢ £35m to the UK defined benefit scheme for the year ended 30 March 2013 [n addition to this, a further £32m
(last year £35m) of cash contributions were made in March 2012 per the funding plan agreed in May 2010
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C3 Retirement benefits continued

G Retirement benefit obligations

Changes In the present value of retirement benefit obligations are as follows

C4 Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme interest in the Scottish Limited Partnership

2012 2014
£m £m
Present value of obhigation at start ofyear _ 51765 52409
Current service cost 541 5t 8
Curtalmentcharge 10 10
Interest cost - o e 2787 2818
Contnbutions from scheme members - 02
Beneftspad o (229 6) _ (252 3)
Actuanal loss/{gamn) 7699 {146 9)
Present value of obligation at end of year 6,050 6 5176 5
Analysed as o . o -
Present valug of pension scheme I|ab|||t|es T, - 1.0 <1 - 1. 5,163 0
Unfunded pension plans 01 03
Post-retirement healthcare 125 132
Present value of oblhigation at end of year 6,050 6 5176 5
H Cumulative actuanal gains and losses recognised in equity
2012 2011
£m £m
Loss at start of year o _ o (1.2448)  (1,5089)
Net actuanal {losses)/gains recognised in the year {128 5) 264 1
Loss at end of year (1,373 3) (1,244 B)
| History of experience gains and losses
2012 2011 2010 2009
Em £m Em £m
Expernence adjustments ansing on schemeassets 8414 1172 8562 {1,254 7)
Expenence (losses)/gains ansing on sc_he_rne_ : abilties . (883 (1 1_2)__ 300 810
Changes In assumptions underlying the present value of scheme (683 5) 158 1 {1,142 2) T264 1
"Actuanal {losses}gains recognised In equity (1284) 2641 (256 0) {909 6)
Fair value of scheme assets 6,503 2 56414 4,887 9 3,9318
Present value of scheme habilities {6,038 0) (5,163 0) (5,224 9) {4,085 2)
Pension scheme asset/(deficit) 465 2 478 4 (337 0) {133 6)

The Company Is a general partner and the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 1s a Imited partner of the Marks and Spencer Scottish

Limited Partnership

The Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership holds £1 5bn of properties which have been leased back to the Company at market rates

Under IAS 19, the partnership interest of the Pension Scheme in the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership 15 included within the UK
pension scheme assets, valued at £1,048 Om (last year £963 5m} For further details see note C3 The market value of this non-quoted
financial asset 1s measured based on the expected cash flows and benchmark asset-backed credit spreads

As general partner, the Company has a nght of pre-emption in respect of a transfer by the Pension Scheme of its imited partnership interest to
another party This allows the general partner to direct that, instead of transferring the kmited partnership interest to such a party, the general

partner can instead nominate the transferee
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Company notes to the financial statements continued

C5 Share-based payments

Disclosures for the Company are not provided here as the impact on the income statement, and the assets and habilities of the Company are
not matenally dissimilar to that of note 12 in the Company’s consolidated financial statements

C6 Intangible assets

Computer
Computer software under
software development Total
£m £m £m
At 3 Apnl 2010
Costorvaluaton 2351 1200 355 1
Accumulated amortisation (83 8) - (83 8)
Net book value 1513 1200 2713
Year ended 2 April 2011 o e
Opening net book valie B 1513 120 0 2713
Addtors o __ 85 431 = 1256
= __ Transfers _ e . 1043 {1049 -
— Disposals {03 (03).
—  Amortisation charge {44 8) = (4a8)
’éBé.F@‘né book value ) T 293 6 58 2 3518
At 2 Apnl 2011
Costorvaluapen 4222 582 4804
Accumulated amortisation {128 6} - (128 6)
Net book value 2936 58 2 3518
Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening net book value 2936 562 3518
‘Addtons T __i ;t: i N T 724 - 526 1250
Transfers 369 (36 9) -
Dsposals o (10 - (10
Amortisation charge (59 3) - {59 3)
Closing net book value 3426 739 416 5
At 31 March 2012 _
- - T DY
Accumulated amorisaton (1879) - (187 9)
"Net book value 3426 739 416 5
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Company notes to the financial statements continued

C7 Property, plant and equipment

Assets inthe

tandand  Fixtures fitings course of

bulldings and eguipment constructon Total

£m £m £m £m

At 3 Apnil 2010 -
Cost - 9194 45983 1189 56366
Accumulated depreciaton TT(783) (28792) - (2,757 5)
Net book value 8411 19191 1189 28791
Year ended 2 April 2011 o ~ L
“Opening net book valve B 8411 18191 1189 2,879 1
Addttions o N 156 1650 1570 3374
Transfers T o 185 611 (79 6) -
Disposals _ o . (o) (02) = (03)
Assetwrte-ofs o o = 34 - 34)
“Depreciation charge j T (62) {363 5) - {369 7)
Closing net book value 868 9 1,778 1 196 3 2,843 3
At 2 Apnl 2011
Cost 952 4 481186 196 3 59603
Accumulated depreciation (83 5) (3,033 5) - (3,117 Q)
Net book value 8689 1,778 1 196 3 28433
Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening net book value 8689 _ 1,778 1 1963  2,8433
Adatons - — 155 2694 2607 5456
Transters T 265 109 2 (1357) -
Disposals o o _ _ﬁ(O &% (&8 - {18
Assel write-offs - T - B - - oy
Depreciation charge T T B T (64) (35274) - (358 8)
Closing net book value 8037 1,790 4 3213 30154
At 31 March 2012 - .
Cost T 992 6 51430 3213 6,456 9
Accumulated depreciation (B8 9) (3,352 6) - {3,441 5)
Net bock value 9037 1,790 4 3213 3,015 4

The net book value above includes land and buildings of £37 6m (last year £37 8m) and equipment of £20 7m (last year £31 8m)
where the Company is a lessee under a finance lease

Addrtions to property, plant and equipment duning the year amounting to £nil (last year £nil) were financed by new finance leases
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C8 Investments

A Investments in Group undertakings

Shares in Group  Loans to Group

undertakings ungertakings Totat
£m £m £m
At 3 Apnil 2010
Cost or valuation 1,7390 05 1,738 5
Provision for impaiment {162 B) — (162 6)
Net book value 1,576 4 05 1,576 9
Year ended 2 Apnl 2011
Opening net book value _ 1,576 4 05 1,576 9
Disposals {299 6) . - (299 6)
_Provision for mpament . 82 - (82
Closing net book value 1,268 6 05 1,269 1
At 2 Apnl 2011
Cost or valuation 14394 05 1,439 9
Provision for mpanment {170 8) - {170 8)
Net book value 11,2686 05 1,269 1
Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening net book value S 1,268 6 05 12691
Prowvision for impairment (67) - (67)
Closing net book value 1,261 8 05 1,262 4
At 31 March 2012
Lost ) 14384 05 1,439 9
Provision for |mp;rma T ’ {177 5) - m(ﬁ'?g)'
Net book value 1,261 9 05 1,262 4

The disposal during the prior year related to the additional interest in Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Parinership which was
transferred to the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme as part of the funding plan announced in May 2010 The provision for
Impairment during the year relates to the impairment of the investment in Simply Food (Property Ventures) Limited (prior year provision
relates to the impairment of the investment in Marks and Spencer 2005 (Oxford Store) Limited)

B Pancipal subsidiary undertakings

The Company's principal subsidiary undertakings are set out below A schedule of interests in all undertakings 1s filed wath the Annual
Return

Propartion of

voting nights

and shares heid

by

Principal activily Cauntry of ncorporaton and operation Company A subsidiary

Marks and Spencer International Holdings Limited Holding company Great Britain 100% -
Marks and Spencer (Nederland)} BV Holding company The Netherlands - 100%
_Marks and Spencer Marinopoulos BY Holding company The Netherlands - 50%
Marks andﬁSpencerEzEEh?e;ubllc as Retamngmm Czech Repubhc i - 5]_%:_
Marks and Spencemr (irelan“alemlted‘ ) Retaiing Repdbhc of Irefand - 100%
Marks and Spencer (Asia Pacific) Limited Retaihing Hong Kong - 100"/1
"Marks and Spencer Simply Foods Limited Retanhﬁa_ Great Britain 100% -
Marks and Spencerﬁaﬁnopoulos Greece SA Retaing Greece o - 80%
‘M S General Insurance L P i "~ Financial services Guernsey - 100%
Marks and Spencer Guernsey Investments LLP Financial services  Guernsey - 100%
Marks and Spencer Investments Limited Finance Great Britain - 100%
St Michael Finance plc ____Finance Great Britain 100% -
per una Group Limited Procurement Great Britain 100% -
Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership - Property investment Great Briain =2 -

1 Pursuart to the prowisiens of Section 17 Companies (Amendment] Act 1986 Marks and Spencer plc has irrevocably guaranteed the habiies of Marks and Spencer {reland)

Limited and as a result Marks and Spencer {Ireland) Limited has peen exempt from the filing provisions of Section 7 Gomparies (Amandment) Act 1986

2 Marks and Spencer plc 1s the general partner

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410 of the Companies Act 2006 by providing information only in
relation to subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial position, in the opimion of the directors, principally affected the financial

statements
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C9 Other financial assets

2012 2011
£m £m

_Non-current i i e
_Unlisted investments e ) §_9____ 30
Other investments' 402 298
432 328

Current

Other investmenis® 492 442

1 Non- current other invastmants are £40 2m (last year £29 8m) shares in Marks and Spencer Group ple held for employes share schemes
2 Current other invastments are £49 2m (last year £44 2m} of money markat deposits held by the Company

Non-current unlisted investments and other investments (shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc) are carned as available-for-sale
assets All other financial assets are measured at fair value with changes in their value taken to the income statement

€10 Trade and other receivables

2012 2011
£m £m

Nan-current
Other receivables 11 28

Pr_e_p;yrnents and accrued ncome 1434 1453
144 5 148 1
“Current - -
“Trade recewables T } T - 49 971
Less Proviston for mpatrment of recevables (1 9) (20)
Trade recewvables ~net Ll n3o e
Other recevables Tt o T T ) 84 116
_Prepayments and accrued imcome e ) 1030 108 6
_Amounts owed by parent company L __ 3 T 25417 25918
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies T T e - /0 7 529 1 4739

3,295 2 3,2810

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired amounted to £2 5m (last year £2 4m} and are mainly sterling denominated The
Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value

As at 31 March 2012, £452 3m (last year £352 6m) of the intercompany receivable 1s interest bearing Overall the interest recevable
during the year was £7 5m (last year £10 8m) Interest rates are set within individual intercompany loan agreements however are
approximately in ine with LIBOR The remaining £2,618 5m (last year £2,713 1m) of intercompany receivables are interest-free

C11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are £119 5m (last year £14 7m) The carrying amount of these assets approxmates therr far value

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits 18 0 37% (last year 0 40%) These deposits have an average maturity of four
days (last year five days)

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement compnse the following balance sheet amounts

2012 2011

Em £m

Cash at bank and in hand ) o L ] o 1198 215
Bank loans and overdrafts o - (5 3) (211 8)

Bank loans and overdrafts treated as financing ) S o T T } 50 50
1195 147
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C12 Trade and other payables

2012 2011
‘ £Em Em
Current
Trade : and other ;ﬂages_: T | ) __-.929 7 8700
“Social : secunty and othertaxes 66 8 537
_Accruals and deferred income 3296 3041
Amounts owed to subsidianes T 1,493 3 174?1_

2,8194 2,658 ¢

Non-current - .
Other payables 3883 3303

As at 31 March 2012, £1,264 5m (last year £973 3m) of the intercompany payable 1s interest bearing Overall the interest payable
during the year was £14 5m (last year £13 2m) Interest rates are set within individual intercompany lcan agreements however are
approximately in ine with LIBOR The remaining £228 8m (tast year £457 8m) of intercompany payables are interest-free

Cost of inventories recogrised as an expense during the year s £5,783 1m (last year £5,502 3m}

€13 Borrowings and other financial habities

2012 2011
£m £m
Current o ) S
Bank loans and overdrafts' S T N 53 2118
6 375% £308m megiuglie@inotes 20117 e 3151
5 875% £267m medium-term notes 2012° T S 280 6
ﬁn'a_n&éTe;a_sce_ labities B T T T o - a7 124
294 6 5393
_Non-current
5 875% £267m medwum-term notes 2012 ) T 2802
5 625% £400m medwm-term notes 2014”_ ] o ] 3999 3897
6 250% US$500m medium-term notes 20173 D :_ 378 3168
6 125% £400m medium-term notes 2019° 428 5 4047
6125% £300m medum-tem ngtes 2021° - . ote_ -
7 125% US$300m medium-term notes 2037° 1899 1893
6 875% £250m puttable callable reset medum-term notes 203724 T T 7 2533 2532
Finance lease llabiities 501 588
1,941 1 1,902 7
Total 22357 24420

Bank lcans and overdrafis includes a £5 Om (last year £5 Om) loan from the Hedge End Park Limitad joint venture (see note C20)
Thaese notes are 1ssuad under Marks and Spencer pic s £3bn European medium-term note programme and ali pay intarest annually
interest on these bonds 1s payable semt annually

These notes :nclude an investar put and 1ssuer call option exercisable n December 2012

FNYAR R

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on page 54 It1s the Company's policy to lease
certamn of its properties and equipment under finance leases The average lease term for equipment is five years (last year six years)
and 125 years (last year 125 years) for property Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate All leases are on a fixed repayment basis
and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent payments The Company's obligations under finance leases are secured
by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets
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C14 Financial instruments

Treasury policy and financial nsk management

Marks and Spencer plc 1s the main treasury entity of the group and as a result the treasury function 18 managed through this company
The term Company and Group are therefore interchangeable in the risk analysis below The Company operates a centralised treasury
function to manage the Group's funding requirements and financial nsks in ine with the Board approved treasury policies and
procedures, and their delegated authonties

The Company's financial instruments, other than dervatives, compnise borrowings, cash and iquid resources and various items, such
as trade recevables and trade payables, that anse directly from its operatons The main purpose of these financial nstruments 1s to
finance the Company’s operations

Group treasury also enters into denvative transactions, principally interest rate and currency swaps and forward currency contracts
The purpose of these transactions 1s to manage the interest rate and currency nsks ansing from the Company's operations and
financing

It remains the Group's policy not to hald or Issue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints
necessitate the need to iquidate any outstanding iInvestments The treasury function 1s managed as a cost centre and does not engage
in speculative trading

The principal financial nsks faced by the Group are iquidity/funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty risks The policies
and strategies for managing these nisks are summansed on the following pages

{a) Liquidity/funding nsk
The risk that the Company could be unable to settle or meet its obligations at a reasonable price as they fall due

- The Group's funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering flexibility and cost effactiveness to match the requirements
of the Group

- Operating subsidianes are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and committed
syndicated bank facilites

At year end, the Company had a committed syndicated bank revolving credit facility of £1 325bn set te mature on 29 September 2016
This facility contains only one financial covenant being the ratio of earmings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents
payable, to interest plus rents payable The covenant 1s measured semi-annually The Company also has a number of undrawn
uncommitted facilihes available to it At year end, these amounted to £105m (last year £105m), all of which are due to be reviewed
within a year At the balance sheet date a sterling equivalent of £nil (last year £nil) was drawn under the committed facilties and £nil
(last year £nil) was drawn under the uncommitted facilities

In addition to the existing borrowings, the Company has a euro medium-term note programme of £3bn, of which £1 6bn (last year
£1 6bn) was in 1ssuance as at the balance sheet date

The 6 375% £308m bond was repard in November 2011 and a new 6 125% £300m bond was subsequently issued under the
pregramme in December 2011 matunng in 2021

The contractual maturity of the Company’s non-dernvative financial habiliies and dernivatives 1s as follows

Bank loans Finance
and Syndicated  Medium-term lease Denvative Derivative
overdrafts bank facihty notes f1abilities Total assels habilties Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Timing of cash flows
Withnoneyear (211 8) - (4399)  (155) (6672) 18748 (1.8926) (178
Betweenoneandtwoyears - - (3801)  (111) (3912) _ 1003 (965 38
Between two and five years - - (6509) (141) (6850) 1007 (1037}  {(30)
More than five years - - (1,992 8) (166 5) (2,159 3) 8302 (883 4) (53 2)
o _ o B _{211® - (34637) (2072) (38B27) 29060 (29762) {70 2)
Effect of discounting and foreign exchange - - 1,5304 7 136 0 14407
At 2 April 2011 {211 8) - (2,158 0) (712) (24420
Timing ofcash flows R . . I
"Within one year T (5 3) ~ (398 5) (112) (4150) 2,0837 (20828 09
Betweenoneandtwoyears - _ = (517 1) (83) (5254) 1861  (1846) 15
Betweentwoand fveyears - - (283 8) (76) (2914) 1105 (103 3) 72
More than five years - - (2.3109) (1647) (2.4756) 8046 (8418}  (372)
- 3 i - (3,510 3) (191 8) (3,707 4) 3,184 9 (3,2125) (27 6)
Effect of discounting and foreign exchange - - 1,3387 1330 1,4717
At 31 March 2012 (53 - (2,171 6) (588) (2,2357)

This table does not include trade and other payables (see note C12) due to the low assocated liquidity risk
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C14 Financial instruments continued

The present value of finance lease liabilities 15 as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

Withmoneyear _ } . . (8 €) (12 4}
Later than one year and not later than five years T B - T '(8 5) {17 Uf
Later than five years T o T T o (:41—f) _Lm(‘tﬁg)
Total (58 8) {(712)

{b) Counterparty nsk
Counterparty nsk exists where the Company can suffer financial loss through defau't or nen-performance by financial institutions

Exposures are managed through Group treasury policy whuch imits the value that can be placed with each approved counterparty to
minimise the nsk of loss The counterparties are hmited to the approved institutions with secure long-term credit ratings A+/A1 or
better, assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively, unless approved by exception by the CFO Limits are reviewed
regularly by senior management The credit sk of these financial instruments 1s estimated as the fair value of the assets resulting from
the contracts

The table below analyses the Company’s short-term mvestments and derivative assets by credit exposure excluding bank balances,
store cash and cash in transit

Credi rating of counterparty®

AAAM AAA AA AA- A+ A a
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m Total
Short-term inves{ments’ 44 2 17 0 423 - 559 - - 159 4
Dernvative assets? - 02 05 - 39 - 08 54
At 2 Apnl 2011 442 17 2 428 - 598 - 08 164 8
AAAM AAA AA AA- A+ A- A?
€m £m £m £m £m £m fm Total
Short-term investments’ 451 - - 19 117 50 - 677
Dervative assets? - - 19 98 - 182 76 375
At 31 March 2012 491 - 19 117 117 232 76 1052

1 Includes cash on deposit and money market funds held by Marks and Spencer Scotish Limited Parinerstup, Marks & Spencer plc and M § General Insurance LP

2 Excludes denvative assel opton which i1s embedded within the £250m puttable callable reset medium-tarm rotes due 2037 and the embedded dervative wittun the lease host
cantract

Exposure {9 a counterparty approved as an exception to treasury pokcy

3
4 Standard & Poor's equivalent raling shown as reference 1o the [owest credit rating of the counterpanty from either Standard & Poor s er Moody s

The Company has very low retail credit nsk due to transactions being principally of a high volume, low value and short maturity

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade receivables £113m (last year £95my), other
receivables £10m (last year £14m), cash and cash equivalents £120m (last year £222m) and denvatives £113m (last year £54m)

(c) Foreagn currency risk

Transactional foreign currency exposures arise from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidianes, and from the
import of materials and goods directly sourced from overseas supphers

Group treasury hedges these exposures principally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively covening up to 100% out to
18 months Where appropriate, hedge cover can be taken out longer than 18 months, with Board approval The Company 1S primanly
exposed to foreign exchange risk in relation to sterling against movements in US dollar and euro

Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the Company's forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges
with fair value movements recognised directly in comprehensive income To the extent that these hedges cover actual currency
payables or receivables, then associated fair value movements previously recogrised In comprehensive income are recorded (n the
income statement in conjunction with the carresponding asset or liability As at the balance sheet date the gross notional value in
sterling terms of forward foreign exchange sell or buy contracts amounted to £1,572m (last year £1,350m) with a weighted average
maturity date of six months (last year six months)

Gains and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 March 2012 will be released to the income statement at
various dates over the following 15 months (last year 14 months) from the balance sheet date

The Company uses a combination of foreign currency debt and denvatives to hedge balance sheet translation exposures As at the
balance sheet date €242m (fast year €201m) and HK$291m (last year HK$192m) of derivatives were hedging overseas net assets

The Company also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to
the hedging of the Company's foreign currency intercompany loans are designated as held for trading with fair value movements being
recognised In the income statement The corresponding fair value movement of the intercompany loan balance results 1n an overall £nil
impact on the Income statement As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value of intercompany loan hedges was £187m (last
year £175m)
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C14 Financial instruments continued

After taking into account the hedging derivatives entered into by the Company, the currency and interest rate exposure of the
Company's financial iabilities excluding short-term payables and the Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a 8 put ophion, 15 set out
below

2012 2014

Fixed rate Floating rate Total Fixed rate Floating rate Total

£m £Em £m £m £m £m
Currency - o o -
‘Stelng 2,030 4 205 2 22356 20302 4118 24420
2,030 4 2052 2,2356 2,0302 4118 24420

The floating rate sterling borrowings are inked to interest rates related to LIBOR These rates are for periods between one and three
months

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of 5 8%
{last year 5 9%) and the weighted average time for which the rate i1s fixed 18 nine years (last year nine years})

{d) Interest rate nsk

The Company I1s exposed to interest rate risk in relation to sterling, US dollar, euro and Hong Kong dollar vanable rate financial assets
and habilities

The Group's policy 1S to use denvative contracts where necessary to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage
this nsk The structure and matunity of these dervatives correspond to the underlying borrowings and are accounted for as far value or
cash flow hedges as appropnate

At the balance sheet date, fixed rate borrowings amounted to £2,030 4m (last year £2,030 2m) representing the public bond 1ssues and
finance leases, amounting to 91% (last year 83%) of the Group's gross borrowings

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows

2012 2011
% %
Commuited and uncommitted borrowings 05 05
Medium-term notes L 58 59
“Finance leases T T T - 46
Denvative financial instruments
2012 2011
Assets Liabilities Assets Liahilities
£m £m £m £m
Current
Optons 777~ held for trading T 536 (536) 144 (14 4)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 133 (51) 28 {29 9)
- T - cash onw’héJéés WItI; éroup - ﬁﬁﬁ{kdi o W(E B)gi 7 7714 4] S (073)"
T T T T - —h_eIchErlradlrE;— S 01— h_h 3)__ _1_2 o ({4)
— netinvestment hedges - 05 - 27)
‘Interest rate swaps o "~ heldfortrading T LT - - (13
€68 4 {70 3) 324 (51 5)
_Non-current L e _ .
Cross currency swaps — cash flow hedges T T _(_265—"” _ﬁ_m_—____(:’,'l_'_f;)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow—hedges_ T T T o _—(‘0_7)——m e -
Interest rate swaps ~  fair value hedge 240 - 08 -
"Embedded denvative T T a0 - 203 -
44 2 {27 2) 218 (37 5)

The amounts reported as optiens held for trading in denvatives assets and liabihties represent the fair value of the call option with the
puttable callable reset notes mirrored by the fair value of the sold option to have this call assigned The Company holds a number of
interest rate swaps to re-designate 1ts sterling fixed rate debt to floating debt These are reported as fair value hedges The Company
also holds a number of cross currency swaps to re-designate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate sterling debt These are reported

as cash flow hedges
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C14 Financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis

The table below illustrates the estimated impact on the income statement and equity as a result of market movements in foreign
exchange and interest rates in relation to the Company’s financial instruments The Company consider that a 2% +/- (last year 2%)
movement in interest rates and a 20% +/- {last year 20%) weakening in sterling represents a reasonable possible change However
this analysis 1s for illustrative purpeses only

The impact in the iIncome statement due to changes in interest rates reflects the effect on the Company’s floating rate debt as at the
balance sheet date The impact in equity reflects the fair value movement in relation to the Company’s cross currency swaps

The impact from foreign exchange movements reflects the change in the fair value of the Company's transactional foreign exchange
cash flow hedges and the net investment hedges at the balance sheet date The equity impact shown for foreign exchange sensitivity
relates to denvative and non-denvative financial instruments hedging net investments This value is expected to be fully offset by the
re-transtation of the hedged foreign currency net assets leaving a net equity impact of zero

The table excludes financial instruments that expose the Company to interest rate and foreign exchange nsk where such nsk 1s fully
hedged with another financial instrument Also excluded are trade recevables and payables as these are ether sterling denominated
or the foreign exchange risk 1s hedged

2% decrease 2% increase 20% 20%
i nterest N Interast weakening stranglhening
rates rates n stering n sterling
£m £m Em £m
At 2 Apnl 2011

Impact on income statement gain/{loss) L S &4 (j‘l_1) - _ -
Impact on other comprehenswe income (foss)/gam (6 3) 63 143 4 (95 6)

At 31 March 2012
impact on income statement gaml(loss) o R 40 (3 - -
Impact on other comprehenswe income (Ioss)lgam (6 0) 30 1753 {116 8}

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique

- Level 1 quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

— Level 2 other techriques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly, and

- Level 3 techrmiques which use tinputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data Unlisted equity investments are included in Level 3 The farr value of embedded denvatives 1s determined using the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on financial forecasts The nature of the valuation techniques and the
judgment around the inputs mean that a change in assumptions ceuld result in significant change in the fair value of the
instrument

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value

2012 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totat Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m im
Assets measured at far value
Financial assets at farr value through T T T
profit and loss _ — e —
—  Trading derwatives - 837 - 537 - 156 - 156
Derwvatives used for hedgng - 388 - 88 - 183 - 183
‘Embedded denvatives ] - - 201 201 - - 203 203
Avalable-for-sale financial assets - ]
- equity secunties 402 - 30 432 298 - 30 328
‘Lrabitities measured at farr value )
Financial habilities at fair vatue through
profit and loss o A
=7 "Trading dervatives - - (549 - (549) - (181 - (181)
‘Derwatve used for hedging - (42 6) - (42 6) N ) - (70 9)

There were no transfers between Leve! 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 farr value
measurements in the current or prior years
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C14 Financial instruments continued

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments

2012 2011

£m £m

Opening balance o o _ 33 30
Additions e _ - - _.L__ 203
Gains and losses re&;gmsed in the income statement T (0 2) -
Closing balance 231 23 3

Fair value of financial instruments

With the exception of the Company’s fixed rate bond debt, there were no matenal differences between the carrying value of non-
derivative financial assets and financial habilities and their farr values as at the balance sheet date

The carrying value of the Company’s fixed rate bond debt was £2,171 6m (last year £2,159 0m), the farr value of this debt was
£2,121 Tm (last year £2,080 1m)

Capital policy

The Group's ohjectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide optimal
returns for shareholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In doing so the Group's strategy ts to maintain a capital structure commensurate with an investment grade credit rating and to retain
approprate levels of lquidity headroom to ensure financial stabiity and flexibility To achieve this strategy the Group regularly monitors
key credit metncs such as the gearing ratio, cash flow to net debt {see note 27 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report)
and fixed charge cover fo maintain this position In addition, the Group ensures a combination of appropriate committed short-term
hquichty headroom with a diverse and balanced long-term debt matunty profile As at the balance sheet date the Group's average debt
maturity profile was nine years (last year mine years) Duning the year the Group maintained an investment grade credit rating of Baa3
(stable) with Moody's and BBE- (stable) with Standard & Poor’s

In order to maintain or realign the capital structure, the Group may adjust the number of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

C15 Provisions

Em £m
At start of year o _ — %98 456
Provided In the year T - T T 46 108
_Released i the year e e - k1 a7
Utilised durning the yeT o o T T T T (16 2) i (1_4 QT
At end of year 251 388
Analysis of provisions e
Current i 51 221
Non-cu?remnt 7 T T T ~ T T T ‘26 ‘Q‘W h —__17_ 7
Total provisions 251 398

The provisions pnmarily compnse one-off strategic programme costs associated with the Focus on the UK plans as well as onerous
lease provisions relating to the 2008/09 UK restructunng

The current element of the provision pnmarily relates to onerous leases, redundancies and strategic costs

The non-current element of the provision relates to store closures, pnmarnly onerous leases, and 1s expected to be utiised over a
penod of ten years
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C16 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided under the balance sheet hability method using a tax rate of 24% {last year 26%)

The movements in deferred tax assets and habihties (after offsetting balances within the same junsdiction as permitted by 1AS 12 -
‘Income Taxes') during the year are shown below

Deferred tax (habilites)/assets

Non-current Other Total

assals  Accelerated Pension short lerm UK

temporary capital lemporary temporary deferrad

differencas  aliowances  diffecences  aifferences lax

£m £m £m £m £m

At 4 April 2310 ) e _(700y (990} _ 812 181 {68 7)
Credited/(charged) to the 1 |ncorr_1e stategwent .~ BB 182 (1 2} 32 280
{Charged)/credited to equity - - (109 B6) {13} (110 9)
At 2 April 2011 (restated) {61 2) (80 8) {29 6) 200 {151 6}
At 3 Apnl 2011 (restated) o {61 2) (80 8) (29 6) 200 (151 6)
_Q[eglted[miggg) to the income statement o 73 23 - 69 27
{Charged)/credited to equity - - (19 0) 3] (18 5)
At 31 March 2012 (53 9) {78 5} (48 6) 136 {167 4)

The deferred tax llability on non-current assets is stated net of the benefit of capital losses with a tax value of £71 4m (last year
£85 0m)

C17 Ordinary share capital

2012 2011

Shares £m Shares £m

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each 2,850,039,477 7125 2,850,038 477 7125
C18 Contingencies and commitments

A Caprtal commitments

2012 2011

Em £m

Commitments in respect of properties in the course of construction 655 877

B Other material contracts

In the event of a matenal change in the trading arrangements with certain warehouse operators, the Company has a commitment to
purchase property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book value to market value, which are currently owned
and operated by the warehouse operators on the Group’s behalf

See note C4 for details on the partnership arrangement with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

C Commitments under operating leases

The Company leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The
leases have varying terms, escalaton clauses and renewal nghts

2612 2011
Em £m
Total future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Within one year L 1846 1800
Laler than one year and nogaggr_than five years - ___ L L 7618 __ 7185
Later than five years and not later than ten years 902 2 858 3
Later than ten years and not later than 15 years o o 7081 6942
Later than 15 5 years and not jater than 20 years o _ . _ 3587 367 6
Later than 20 years and not Jater than 25 years 2440 2254
Later than 25 years 1,105 3 1,097 0
Total 42647 41410

The total future sublease payments to be received are £53 1m (last year £53 8m)
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C19 Analysis of cash flows given in the statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities

2012 2011

£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation o e 5145 2993
Incometax expense 1240 158 4

Finance costs e o L o 1434 1855
‘Finance income __ (518 (6a7)
“Operating profit e T j ] 730 1 548 5

Increasewninventores . . 43___(1388)
{Increase}/decrease in re&ew_ables (477 _ 52

Payments to acquire leasehold properties ) {12 (1T)

Increase npayables _ 1816 2935
-I':Jc?rl—-ﬂ_rlq?ilymg operating cash outflows . 212y (122)
Depreciation, amortisation and assel write-offs 4213 414 5
_Share-based payments o 325 35
Pension costs charged aganst operatingproft T 10 ggy 528
_C_a.:;rmntrubutlo_ns—tﬁer_monzh;r?l—eg T (gs_Q)n ’ {85 0)
Provision for mpairment o e . 67 82
Non-underlying operating profit tems 156 {7 4)
Cash generated from operations 1292 1 11114

Non-underlying operating cash outflows pnmanly relate te the utiisation of the provisions for UK restructunng and strategic programme
costs

C20 Related party transactions

A Marks and Spencer Group plc

Dunng the year, the Company paid dividends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group plc of £273 6m (last year £250 8m)
and has decreased its loan to its parent company by £50 1m {last year decrease of £11 7m) The outstanding balance was £2,541 7m
(last year £2,591 8m)

Transactions between the Company and its subsichanes, which are related parties, are summansed below

202 2011

Transactions ‘Transactions

£m £m

_Trading sales o e (316 2) (3147)
Trading purchases 2288 7237
Rental expense L e (1269 _ (1202)
Rent recevable 16 1 134
Interest (7 0y 32)

B Hedge End joint venture

A loan of £5 Om was received from the joint venture on 9 October 2002 1t 1s repayable on five business days’' notice and was renewed
on 1 January 2012 Interest was charged on the loan at 2 0% until 31 December 2009 and 0 5% thereafter

C Lima {Bradford) joint venture

The Company has entered into a rental agreement with the joint venture and £4 5m (last year £4 5m) of rental charges were incurred
There was no outstanding balance at March 2012

D Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme

Details of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme are set out In notes C3 and C4
E Key management compensation

Payments and benefits refating to key management are set out on page 39

C2t Ultimate parent company

The immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Marks and Spencer Group plc

Marks and Spencer Group plc is the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings to consolidate these financial statements
at 31 March 2012 The consolidated financral statements of Marks and Spencer Group plc are avallable from Waterside House, 35
North Wharf Road, London, W2 1NW
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C22 Events after the reporting penod

On 21 May 2012 the Company as the general partner of the Scottish Limited Partnership {the Partnership) changed the terms of the
partnership to wave the Imited discrettonary night over the annual distributions from the Parinership to the Pension Trustee These
discretionary nghts were agreed with the pension trustee in 2009, the time of the last tnenmal valuation This change will not have any
impact on the accounting within the Company
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